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The Herrin Massacre took place in June 1922 in Herrin, Illinois. Three union miners (Jordie Henderson,
Joseph Pitkewicius and one other) were killed in a strike-related confrontation on June 21. The following day,
19 of of fifty strikebreakers and union guards were killed, many of them in a brutal way. A twentieth victim

from the non-union group would later be killed, bringing the death count to twenty-three.[”m
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Historical background

On April 1, 1922 the United Mine Workers of America (UMWA) began a nationwide strike. W. J. Lester, the
owner of the Southern Illinois Coal Company, operated a strip mine about halfway between Herrin and
Marion, Illinois. Lester at first complied with the strike. He had only recently opened the mine, and massive
startup debts made him negotiate with the UMWA to allow his mine to remain open, as long as no coal was
shipped out. Under the agreement, some United Mine Workers members were allowed to continue working
during the strike. Lester told an associate that local union leaders were friendly with him; however, he was

warned this did not mean he had any control over the ordinary members. 3]

By June, Lester's miners had dug out nearly 60,000 tons of coal. Strike-driven shortages had raised coal prices,
and Lester would make a $250,000 profit if he sold his coal. He decided to violate the agreement he had made.
When the UMWA members working for him objected, he fired all of his union workers.[#! Lester brought in
mine guards and 50 strikebreakers, vilified as "scabs", recruited by employment agencies in Chicago. On June
16, 1922, he shipped out sixteen railroad cars filled with coal. Testimony later revealed that his mine guards
possessed machine guns. They aggressively searched passers-by, and "they frighten women, they boast and are
hard-boiled."[?]
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Escalation

Lester, responding to a reporter's questions, said his steam shovel operators and the railroad workers were
members of their respective unions.

John L. Lewis, president of the UMWA, responded in a telegram on June 20. He called the Steam Shovelmen's
Union an "outlaw organization" which also provided strikebreakers elsewhere. UMW A members, he said, "are
justified in treating this crowd as an outlaw organization and in viewing its members in the same light as they
do any other common strikebreakers."

There was confusion and disagreement between Lewis and William J. Tracy, representative of District No. 1,
International Brotherhood of Steam Shovel and Dredgemen (IBSSD). Lewis in his widely publicized statement
said that two representatives of the UMWA had contacted the IBSSD, but "have failed to secure any

satisfaction."!®) He did note that the Steam Shovel union had been suspended from the American Federation of
Labor, which the United Mine Workers also belonged to. Lewis claimed that the IBSSD was likewise
strikebreaking in Ohio. Tracy responded that though he had sent four individuals to the site when requested,
they turned away when they saw the guards. He stated that no one from his organization was working in

Herrin.!7] Tracy also criticized the UMWA for not communicating adequately about the situation. 3] Is is
unclear if Lester was telling the truth, or if he had contacted the IBSSD to disguise the use of non-union
workers. To Lewis, it didn't matter. Lester's workers were not UMWA members, and the UMWA claimed sole
jurisdiction over all coal miners.

Lewis' message was printed in newspapers, and miners throughout the region decided to take action. Early in
the morning on June 21, a truck carrying Lester's guards and strikebreakers was ambushed near Carbondale,

Illinois on its way to his mine. Three men were wounded and six others jumped into the river.I1119] Later in
the day several hundred miners rallied in the Herrin cemetery. Lewis' message was read to the crowd, enraging
them further. The union miners marched into Herrin and looted the hardware store of its firearms and
ammunition. At about 3:30 p.m., they surrounded Lester's mine. Lester's guards opened fire, killing two of the

UMWA members and mortally wounding a third.[111112]

The Siege

The mine superintendent, C.K. McDowell, called Col. Hunter to tell him the mine was surrounded and being
fired upon. McDowell said he could not reach Sheriff Thaxton, and pleaded for troops. Col. Hunter called
Thaxton's deputy and told him to ask the Illinois National Guard Adjutant General for troops and to move out
to the mine with as many men as possible to stop the attack and break up the mob action.

Thaxton's men did nothing. Col. Hunter contacted the Adjutant General himself and convinced him to mobilize
troops. Lester, who had left the area several days before, was contacted by phone in Chicago. Realizing the
gravity of the situation, he agreed to close the mine for the remainder of the nationwide UMWA strike. Col.
Hunter and a citizen's group laid out a plan to get a truce in place— telephoning McDowell to tell him raise a
white flag, and asking the UMWA sub-district vice president, Fox Hughes, to go out to the site and do the
same. The means of getting the strikebreakers safely out of the mine would be worked out later.

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Herrin_massacre Page 2 of 6



Herrin massacre - Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia 3/27/12 10:16 PM

McDowell later reported by phone that the shooting had died down, and Col. Hunter and the citizen's group
were optimistic that a disaster was going to be avoided. The National Guard troops were not needed after all,
they decided.

Hughes went to the mine with a white flag, but never took it out and raised it. He later claimed to never have
seen McDowell raise a white flag, so he decided Lester's men hadn't lived up to their part of the truce. He
went home and took no further action, explaining later that he found out his boss in the UMWA leadership,
Hugh Willis, was now involved and therefore concluded his role in the drama was finished.

During the evening more and more union supporters gathered guns and ammunition, and made their way to
the strip mine. McDowell was to have called Col. Hunter when the truce took effect. When the call didn't
“come, Col. Hunter tried to telephone the mine, but he found the phone lines were dead. No law enforcement
personnel went to the mine. No government officials accompanied Hughes to check if the white flags were
raised; and no troops were ever activated by the Guard despite repeated signs that Thaxton and his men could
not be counted on to act. No action was taken to enforce a truce.

Late in the evening of June 21, Sheriff Thaxton reluctantly agreed to go to the mine to make sure the truce was
carried out and that the strikebreakers were given safe passage out of the county. Despite urgings that he go
immediately, he insisted he needed rest and that it could wait until morning. Thaxton promised to meet Hunter
and Major Davis of the Carbondale National Guard unit at the sheriff's office at 6 a.m. the next day. That
evening, Hugh Willis, the local UMWA leader, spoke to union supporters in Herrin. During his speech Willis
said of the strikebreakers: "God damn them, they ought to have known better than to come down here; but
now that they're here, let them take what's coming to them."

Gunfire continued throughout the night, and the mob began destroying mine equipment to prevent the mine
from reopening. They used hammers, shovels, and dynamite to wreck the draglines and bulldozers while
keeping the scabs pinned down inside coal cars and behind barricades.

Surrender

The strikebreakers finally sent out a mine guard, Bernard Jones, with an apron tied to a broomstick. Jones told
the mob that the men were ready to surrender if their safety would be guaranteed. Someone said, "Come on
out and we'll get you out of the county." The strikebreakers came out, and the striking miners began to march
them toward Herrin, five miles away.

After walking about a half mile, the group found more men waiting for them at Crenshaw Crossing. One of
these men shouted out, "The only way to free the county of strikebreakers is to kill them all off and stop the
breed!" The mob grew more agitated and violent as they turned west and continued along. Some struck the
strikebreakers with the butts of their guns.

The Chase and Massacre

A half mile past Crenshaw Crossing at Moake Crossing, McDowell was bloodied and limping, unable to go
any further. The man who'd spoken earlier said "I'm going to kill you and use you for bait to catch the other
men." He and another man grabbed McDowell and walked off down a side road. Shots rang out, and everyone

http:/ /en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Herrin_massacre Page 3 of 6



Herrin massacre - Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia 3/27/12 10:16 PM

else continued towards Herrin. A farmer later found McDowell's body. He'd been shot four times: twice in the
stomach, and once each in the chest and head by the mob.

A car pulled up to the procession, and a man came out whom some of the strikebreakers overheard being
called "Hugh Willis" and "the president." According to the accounts of surviving captives, he said, "Listen,
don't you go killing these fellows on a public highway. There are too many women and children and witnesses
around to do that. Take them over in the woods and give it to them. Kill all you can."

The prisoners were taken off the road into the woods, where they reached a barbed wire fence. The
strikebreakers were told to run for their lives. One man shouted, "Let's see how fast you can run between here
and Chicago, you damned gutter-bums!" The mob opened fire behind the strikebreakers as they ran. Many of
the captives were caught up in the fence and shot to death. Others, making it over the fence but not knowing
where they were, ran through Harrison's Woods toward Herrin, still a mile north. One strikebreaker caught
inside the woods was hanged and three others were shot to death at his feet. The assistant superintendent of the
mine, was alive but unconscious. One of the union men noticed that he was still alive and shot him in the
head. The chase continued on into the morning of the 22nd.

Six men were recaptured and ordered to remove their shirts and shoes. They were then told to crawl to Herrin
Cemetery. By noon a crowd of about 1,000 spectators had gathered at the cemetery. They watched as the
strikebreakers were roped together and men took turns beating and shooting them. The men that were tied up
were also urinated upon. Those who were still alive at the end had their throats cut by a man wielding a
pocketknife. Other townspeople came out to look at and taunt the dead and dying along the route to the
cemetery. One reporter tried to give one of the dying men some water and was told that if he gave the man
water, "he wouldn't live to see the next day". '

Aftermath

Sheriff Thaxton had failed to meet Col. Hunter and Major Davis at his office at 6 a.m. as promised; he finally
showed up at 8 a.m. By then Hunter and Davis had already heard rumors of the violence against the
strikebreakers. When the three finally arrived at the mine, what remained of the operation was in flames, and
they learned the mob had left three hours earlier.

When they retraced the steps of the mob, they found the grisly evidence of the dead, dying, and wounded.
Those that weren't dead were taken to Dr. J. Taylor Black's Herrin Hospital. But 19 of the 50 strikebreakers
died during the massacre. Two union miners had been shot and killed during the siege of the strip mine,
bringing the total number of victims to 21.

The dead strikebreakers were laid out in the Dillard Building in downtown Herrin, and most of the town
turned out to look at them. Some gazed quietly, others cursed and spit on the bodies. 16 of the 19
strikebreakers killed in the action were later buried in the potter's field area of Herrin Cemetery.

Thousands attended the funerals of the two union miners who died during the siege.

The nation reacted to the massacre with disgust. One newspaper editorial said "Herrin, Illinois should be
ostracized. Shut off from all communication with the outside world and the people there left to soak in the
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blood they have spilled." President Warren Harding called it a "shocking crime, barbarity, butchery, rot and
madness." Others also compared the people of Herrin to the alleged behaviour of German troops in World War
I

Lester, whose double-dealing set the tragic events into motion, made a significant profit when the union
bought his mine at "a handsome price" in order to avoid lawsuits.! 3]

The Trials

At first, the inquest held by the coroner concluded that all the strikebreakers were killed by unknown

individuals, and stated that "the deaths of the decedents were due to the acts direct and indirect of the officials
of the Southern Illinois Coal Company." They recommended that the company and its officers be investigated
in order to affix appropriate responsibility on them. It was obvious the victims could not gain justice in Herrin.

Two trials were held, the first on November 7, 1922, and the second in the winter of 1923. Only six men were
ever indicted for the massacre, and both trials ended in acquittals for all the defendants. The prosecution gave
up and dismissed the remaining indictments. Otis Clark was the first man to be tried on a total of 214 charges.
Two years later, Clark would be shot and killed. Another of the accused would die in a mine accident.

A Williamson County Grand Jury investigating the incident faulted the Southern Illinois Coal Company for
introducing strike breakers and armed guards, and for committing illegal activities such as closing public
highways. It criticized the state administration for refusing to take necessary measures once the trouble had

begun.! !l Herbert David Croly of the New Republic criticized the state of Illinois for allowing the Illinois

Chamber of Commerce to fund the investigation.[!>! Croly described the retaliation for the deaths of two
strikers (the third had been mortally wounded) "atrocious", but noted that while the perpetrators were likely to
escape punishment, those who harmed strikers—such as Hamrock after Ludlow, or Wheeler after Bisbee —

likewise frequently escaped justice.l'®] Croly noted that the local government was sympathetic to the union, as
was public sentiment, and under such circumstances, the union had a responsibility to police its own

members.[!7]

See also

= List of massacres in Illinois
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Herrin massacre

The Herrin massacre took place in June 1922 in Herrin,
[llinois, in a coal mining area during a strike by the United
Mineworkers of America (UMWA). Although the owner of
the mine originally agreed with the union to observe the
strike, when the price of coal went up, he hired non-union
workers, or "scabs", to produce and ship out coal, as he had
high debt in start-up costs.

Enraged that the owner had disregarded their agreement, on
June 21, union miners shot at the strikebreakers going to
work, where the mine had armed guards. When striking
union members armed themselves and laid siege to the mine,
the owner's guards shot and killed three union miners (Jordie
Henderson, Joseph Pitkewicius, and one other) in an
exchange of gunfire.

The next day, union miners killed 19 of 50 strikebreakers and
mine guards, many of them brutally. A twentieth victim from
the non-union group was later murdered, bringing the death

total to 23.111(2]
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Herrin massacre
Part of the Coal Wars

S ; o

The upper photograph shows the remains of a supply
house that was dynamited and burned, while the
lower shows the remains of an oil house, near which

two of the striking workers were shot and killed.

Lead figures
John L. Lewis; C.K. McDowell
Casualties
| Deaths: 3 killed Deaths: 19

Date 1922
Location Herrin, Illinois, U .S.
Parties to the civil conflict

Striking coal miners - Southern Illinois Coal
United Mine Workers Company;

Strikebreakers

Arrests:
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Historical background

On April 1, 1922 the United Mine Workers of America (UMWA) began a nationwide strike. W. J. Lester, owner
of the Southern Illinois Coal Company, operated a strip mine about halfway between Herrin and Marion,
[llinois. Lester at first complied with the strike. He had only recently opened the mine, and massive startup
debts made him negotiate with the UMWA to allow his mine to remain open, as long as no coal was shipped
out. Under the agreement, some United Mine Workers members were allowed to continue working during the
strike. Lester told an associate that local union leaders were friendly with him; however, he was warned this did

not mean he had any control over the ordinary members.[3]

By June, Lester's miners had dug out nearly 60,000 tons of coal. Strike-driven shortages drove up demand and
the price of coal, and Lester would make a $250,000 profit if he sold his coal. He decided to violate the
agreement he had made with the union. When the UMWA members working for him objected, he fired all the

union workers.[4]

Lester brought in mine guards and 50 strikebreakers, who were vilified as "scabs" by the union men. They had
been recruited by employment agencies in Chicago. On June 16, 1922, he shipped out sixteen railroad cars filled
with coal. Testimony later revealed that his mine guards possessed machine guns. They aggressively searched

passers-by, and "they frighten women, they boast and are hard-boiled."!!

Escalation

Lester, responding to a reporter's questions, said his steam shovel operators and the railroad workers were
members of their respective unions. John L. Lewis, president of the UMWA, responded in a telegram on June
20. He called the Steam Shovelmen's Union an "outlaw organization" that also provided strikebreakers
elsewhere. UMWA members, he said, "are justified in treating this crowd as an outlaw organization and in
viewing its members in the same light as they do any other common strikebreakers."

There was confusion and disagreement between Lewis and William J. Tracy, representative of District No. 1,
International Brotherhood of Steam Shovel and Dredgemen (IBSSD). In a widely publicized statement, Lewis
said that two representatives of the UMWA had contacted the IBSSD, but "have failed to secure any

satisfaction."[®] He did note that the Steam Shovel union had been suspended from the American Federation of
Labor, to which the United Mine Workers also belonged. Lewis claimed that the IBSSD was also strikebreaking
in Ohio. Tracy responded that though he had sent four individuals to the site when requested, they turned away

when they saw the guards. He said that no one from his organization was working in Herrin "] Tracy also
criticized the UMWA for not communicating adequately about the situation.[®]
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It is unclear if Lester was telling the truth, or if he had contacted the IBSSD to disguise the use of non-union
workers. To Lewis, it did not matter. Lester's workers were not UMWA members, and the UMWA claimed sole
jurisdiction over all coal miners.

Lewis' message was printed in newspapers, and miners throughout the region decided to take action. Early in
the morning on June 21, a truck carrying Lester's guards and strikebreakers was ambushed near Carbondale,

Illinois on its way to his mine. Three men were wounded and six others jumped into the river.2118] Later in the
day several hundred miners rallied in the Herrin cemetery. Lewis' message was read to the crowd, enraging
them further.

The union miners marched into Herrin and looted the hardware store of its firearms and ammunition. At about
3:30 p.m., they surrounded Lester's mine. Lester's guards opened fire, killing two of the UMWA members and

mortally wounding a third.[41[°]
Siege

The mine superintendent, C.K. McDowell, called National Guard Col. Hunter to tell him the mine was
surrounded and being fired upon. McDowell said he could not reach County Sheriff Thaxton, and pleaded for
troops. Col. Hunter called Thaxton's deputy and told him to ask the Illinois National Guard Adjutant General for
troops and to move out to the mine with as many men as possible to stop the attack and break up the mob
action.

Thaxton's men did nothing. Hunter contacted the adjutant general himself and convinced him to mobilize
troops. Lester, who had left the area several days earlier, was reached by phone in Chicago. Realizing the
gravity of the situation, he agreed to close the mine for the remainder of the nationwide UMWA strike. Hunter
and a citizens' group laid out a plan to get a truce in place — telephoning McDowell to tell him to raise a white
flag, and asking the UMWA sub-district vice president, Fox Hughes, to go to the mine and do the same. The
method of getting the strikebreakers safely out of the mine was to be worked out later.

McDowell later reported by phone that the shooting had died down, and Hunter and the citizens' group were
optimistic that a disaster would be avoided. They decided the National Guard troops were not needed after all.
Hughes went to the mine with a white flag, but he never took it out or raised it. He later said he had not seen
McDowell raise a white flag, so he decided Lester's men had not lived up to the bargain. He went home and did
nothing, later claiming he learned that his boss in the UMWA leadership, Hugh Willis, was now involved and
decided his role was finished.

During the evening, more union supporters stole guns and ammunition, and made their way to the strip mine.
McDowell was to have called Hunter when the truce took effect. When he, Col. Hunter tried to telephone the
mine, he found the phone lines had been cut. No law enforcement officers went to the mine, no government
officials accompanied Hughes to ensure the white flags were raised, and no troops were activated by the
National Guard despite repeated signs that Thaxton could not be counted on to act. No action was taken to
enforce a truce.
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Late in the evening of June 21, Sheriff Thaxton reluctantly agreed to go to the mine to ensure the truce was
carried out and the strikebreakers were given safe passage. Despite being urged to go immediately, he claimed
he needed to rest. Thaxton promised to meet Hunter and Major Davis of the Carbondale National Guard
company at the sheriff's office at 6 a.m. the following morning. That evening, Hugh Willis, the local UMWA
leader, spoke to union supporters in Herrin. Willis said of the strikebreakers: "God damn them, they ought to
have known better than to come down here; but now that they're here, let them take what's coming to them."
Gunfire continued throughout the night, and the mob began destroying equipment to prevent the mine from
reopening. They used hammers, shovels, and dynamite to wreck the draglines and bulldozers, while keeping the
strikebreakers pinned down inside coal cars and behind barricades.

Surrender

The strikebreakers sent out a mine guard, Bernard Jones, with an apron tied to a broomstick. Jones told the mob
the men would surrender if their safety would be guaranteed. He was told, "Come on out and we'll get you out
of the county." The strikebreakers did as they were told, and the union miners began marching them to Herrin,
five miles away. After about a half mile, the strikebreakers encountered more men waiting for them at Crenshaw
Crossing. One of them shouted, "The only way to free the county of strikebreakers is to kill them all off and
stop the breed!" The mob grew more agitated and violent as they continued on. Some struck the strikebreakers
with the butts of their rifles and shotguns.

The chase and massacre

By about half mile past Crenshaw Crossing at Moake Crossing, McDowell was already bloodied and limping,
unable to walk any further. A union man told him, "I'm going to kill you and use you for bait to catch the other
men." He and another man grabbed McDowell and led him down a side road. Gunshots were heard, and the rest
continued towards Herrin. A farmer later discovered McDowell's body. He had been shot four times — twice in
the stomach, and once each in the chest and head. A car drove up to the procession, and a man came out whom
some said they overheard being called "Hugh Willis" and "the president." According to the accounts of
surviving captives, Willis said, "Listen, don't you go killing these fellows on a public highway. There are too
many women and children and witnesses around to do that. Take them over in the woods and give it to them.
Kill all you can."

The breakers were taken into the woods, where they reached a barbed wire fence. They were then told to run for
their lives. A union man shouted, "Let's see how fast you can run between here and Chicago, you damned
gutter-bums!" The mob opened fire as they ran. Many were caught in the fence and shot dead. Others, making it
over the fence but not knowing where they were, ran through Harrison's Woods toward Herrin, a mile further
north. One strikebreaker was caught and hanged and three more were shot to death at his feet. The assistant
superintendent of the mine was still alive but unconscious. A union man noticed and shot him in the head. The
chase continued into the morning of the 22nd.

Six breakers were recaptured and ordered to remove their shirts and shoes. They were then told to crawl to

Herrin Cemetery.[w] By noon a crowd of about 1,000 spectators had gathered at the cemetery. They watched as
the strikebreakers were roped together and men took turns beating and shooting them. They were also urinated
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upon. Those still alive at the end had their throats cut by a union man with a pocketknife. Townspeople came to
watch and taunt the dead and dying along the route to the cemetery. A reporter tried to give a dying man some
water and was told that if he did, "he wouldn't live to see the next day."

Aftermath

Sheriff Thaxton had failed to meet Col. Hunter and Major Davis at his office at 6 a.m. as promised; he finally
showed up at 8 a.m. By then Hunter and Davis had already heard rumors of the violence against the
strikebreakers. When the three finally arrived at the mine, what remained of the operation was in flames, and
they learned the mob had left three hours earlier.

When they retraced the steps of the mob, they found the grisly evidence of the dead, dying, and wounded.
Those with injuries were taken to Dr. J. Taylor Black's Herrin Hospital. In total, 19 of the 50 strikebreakers died
during the massacre, and another was murdered shortly after. Three union miners had been shot and killed
during the siege of the strip mine, bringing the total number of victims to 21.

The dead strikebreakers were laid out in the Dillard Building in downtown Herrin, and most of the town turned
out to look at them. Some gazed quietly, others cursed and spat on the bodies. 16 of the 19 strikebreakers killed

in the action were later buried in the potter's field area of Herrin Cemetery.[m[m] Thousands attended the
funerals of the three union miners who died during the siege.

The nation reacted to the massacre with disgust. One newspaper editorial said "Herrin, Illinois should be
ostracized. Shut off from all communication with the outside world and the people there left to soak in the blood
they have spilled." President Warren Harding called it a "shocking crime, barbarity, butchery, rot and madness."
Others also compared the people of Herrin to the alleged behavior of German troops during World War 1.

Lester, whose double-dealing set the tragic events into motion, made a significant profit when the union bought
his mine at "a handsome price" in order to avoid lawsuits.[4]

The trials

At first, the inquest held by the coroner concluded that all the strikebreakers were killed by unknown
individuals, and stated that "the deaths of the decedents were due to the acts direct and indirect of the officials of
the Southern Illinois Coal Company." They recommended that the company and its officers be investigated in
order to affix appropriate responsibility on them. Two trials were held, the first on November 7, 1922, and the
second in the winter of 1923. Only six men were ever indicted for the massacre, and the first two trials ended in
acquittals for all the defendants. The prosecution gave up and dismissed the remaining indictments. Otis Clark
was the first man to be tried on a total of 214 charges. Two years later, Clark was shot and killed. Another of the
accused died in a mine accident.

A Williamson County grand jury investigating the incident faulted the Southern Illinois Coal Company for
introducing strike breakers and armed guards, and for committing illegal activities such as closing public
highways. It criticized the state administration for refusing to take necessary measures once the trouble had

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Herrin_massacre Page 5 of 7
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begun.[13] Herbert David Croly of The New Republic criticized the state of Illinois for allowing the Illinois
Chamber of Commerce to fund the investi gation.[13]

Croly described the retaliation for the deaths of two strikers (the third had been mortally wounded) "atrocious",
but noted that while the perpetrators were likely to escape punishment, those who harmed strikers—such as

Hamrock after Ludlow, or Wheeler after Bisbee — likewise frequently escaped justice.[M] Croly noted that the
local government was sympathetic to the union, as was public sentiment, and under such circumstances, the
union had a responsibility to police its own members.[3]

See also

m [ ist of massacres in the United States
= Murder of workers in labor disputes in the United States
» [ist of incidents of civil unrest in the United States
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Three . [MNonunion orkers
Lynched by Union Sympa-
thizers Who Storm Pit

CROWD DENIES WATER
; TO DYING IN STREET

Dead Scattered Over Area of 15
Miles—Captives Dragged
Behind Autos

Herrin, I, June 22.-—A checkup at
noon today, made by tha Associated
Press, showed 26 known dead and indi-
cation that the total would be more
than 20 in the battle between striking
union miners and employees of the
strip mines of the Southern Ilinois
Coal company near here.

Three Miners Hanged

Bodies were spread over an area 15
miles square,-some of them riddled with
bullets, others beaten to death and
three hanging by ropes from trees.

‘4 Associated Press correspondent

- 10 ineffectual attempts today final-
Iy persuaded a taxicab dri\'e}- to take
him through the scene of the fight. fl‘he
strip minc had been fired and a frex._s;ht
train on a siding also was burning,
while miners looted several cars of food
supplies.

Teny Water to Dying

Out in a road near the mine, Six
men tied together and terribly 'man-
gled by bullets and clubs, lay in a
scorching sun while hundreds of nlen
and women laughed at their pleas for
water made in the name of God.

One of the men, his face bloody and
one shoulder shot away apparently was
‘within a few mi:u{:(\s of death‘.‘ St

| “Please, boys, give me & drink, e
moaned.

A laugh from the hundreds of specta-
tors was the only reply. -

The correspondent rushed to a house
for water and when he returned he
was faced by a sword, quickly drawn
pistols and told to keep away.

Men Dragged Behind Autos
tWhen the man begged again for
water, 'for God's sake,” a young Wwo-:
man with a baby in her arms, placad
her foot on the mangled body and saids

Sl see you in hell before you get
any water.”. .

The men apparently hadbeen dragged
gown a rook road hohind an antomaohiiel
Their clothes were torn and picces ot
gravel were imbedded in their mane
~*ad . flesh. 4 S, g T |

SOUTHERN ILLINOIS COAL COMPANY

HERRIN MASSACRE

Nonvntonists Deelared Massacred

Tha hedies of 16 nonunion men were
found in a woods near the strip mine,
gix miles east of here. A man named
MeDowell, foreman at the mine, was
beaten to death, and the other 14, ex-

clusive of the man hanged, were shot
[ta death. It was stated the men were
massicred when they attempted to es-
cape after being taken prisoner by
tihe union forees,

The dead mnonunion men were re-
ported to have been among 44 prisoners
captured at the strip mine, Y¥our oth-
ers were found riddled with bullets,
and are not expected to recover, What
i became of the other 24 could not be
learned.

Shot Down Trying to Flee

‘There were several thousand men and
‘boys present when the 16 nonunion
men were killed at'9 a.m. The 44 men
‘were taken prisoner at the camp herd-
ed in front of the captors and when
they reached, a point about half way
between the mine and Herrin where
they passed through a woods, the kill-
ing began.

Strikers declared the prisoners by an
apparently prearranged signal, made a
dash to e¢scape and that they were
pursued and killed.

The three dead union miners were
killed in last night's fighting.

Man Hunt Continues

¥our of the 16 bodies of strikebreak-
ers were found at the foot of the tree
from which the body of tiie man hanged
was suspended. The bodies of the.other
11 dead and four wounded were scat-
tered through the woods.

The man hunt was continuing over
a wide areca. Six men later were cap-

tured and taken in the direction of

the mine.
Union Sympathizers &torm Mine

. . t
The union sympathizers stormed the

camp before daybreak, but found no
employes of the strip mine in their
tents, and departed.

They vreturned after daybreaic a.nd'

found the men hiding behind steam
shovels and other paraphernalia, the
reports said. The mine employees
thereupon were lined up, and some were
marched into the woods and lynched,
according to the reports.

Persons who canvassed the woods
say ‘“bodies are scattered all over.”

. Battle Resumed Early Today.

i Sounds of occasional shots were
heard carly today from the direction of
the mining camp near here where striks
ing union miners surround the camp in
which approximately 100 nonunion
workers were quartered.

Unverified reports were that more
than 12 men were killed in the pitched
fight iate yesterday at the mining
camp, in an explosion between Carters
ville and May. neatr the scene of the
troubls, and in an attack om a fruck
carrying nonunion men to the’ mine,
which occurred necar Carbondale. - It
wag impossible to verify these reports

because of confusion at the camp. i

.é/zz )9
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STATEMENT BY JOHN Li .EWIS, PRESIDENT, UNITED h..® WORKERS GF AMIRICA
JUNE 23, 1922,

The United liine VWorkers of Anerica is not to eny degree responsible for
the unfortunate occurrence at Herrin, Illinois. The crganization has never
encouraged and does not condone lawlessnecs of eny character. The officers
of the organization are shocked end greatly deplore this tragedy. 7Te are
not, however, unmindful of the fact that sinister influencesg have for scme
time been at work emong our membership to inclte end infleme the spirit of
violence. The ranks of the strikers are infested wlth thousands of detéctives
and Secret Service operatives whose employment by coal companies depends upon
their ability to provoke violence and disturb publie tranquility. We have
frequently called attention to this fact before Investigating Comnmittees of
Congress and have cited innumerable instances where outrages and murders
have been committed by these irresponsible and lawless agents of the coal
operatorse

It i3 not true, as alleged, that the telegram from me addressed toc State
S~=gtor William J. Sneed had any reference or connection with the disturbance
at Herrin. A reading of the telegram, which has already been published, wil”.
conclugsively show that it mgrely referred to the trade union status of the
members of the Steamshovelmen's uniom who were working in strip pit operations
throughout the country. The activities of the members of the Steamshoveluen's
union had caused them to be definitely placed In the catagory of strike
breskers and I so stated in my telegram of the 19th instant in reply to the
inquiry wired me by Senator Sneed. Aside from being President of %he Sub-
District organization of Mine Workers in Villiemson County, Mr., Sneed is a
member of the Illinois State Senatef and & member of the Constitutional
Convention of the State of Illinois, now in session, and is regarded as one of
the foremost citizens of Southern Illinois. His public statements bearing upon
this matter should be given thoughtful consideration by the public. In the
m wtime, 1 am.taﬁing steps to secure full and canplete information upon the

éntire subject matter.
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Patroas should mark an X oppo-
sito tho class of servico desired;
OTHERWISE THFE MESSAGE

MITTED AS A .
WH'.:II]LBLEJE{}EN%ELEGRAM NEWCOMB CARLTON, PRESIDENT GEORGE W. E, ATKINS, FIRST VICE-PRESIDENT

Time Filed

Send the following message, subject to the terms
on back hercof, which are hereby agreed to

Cincinnati, Ohio, June 24, 1922.

r. E. J. Costello,
c¢/o Federated Press,
Chicego, illinois.

Concerning your wire all available money being utilized to
purchage food for hungry people engaged in strike and am
therefore not able to take advantage of your mfiRkx offer.

G 1o i
Jehn L, ;salbe

Chge YoOm 344,
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CROWD JEERS AS j 0 )"Fe
WOQUNDED MEN BEG </ s
VAINLY FOR WATER '

HERRIN, Ill., June 2.-—~Out in a
road near the mine, six men tied to-
gether and a1} wounded by bullets |
and blows, lay in & scorching sun,

| € /égiﬁj B{j -5

while hundreds of men and women -~ EUROPEAN PLAN
laughed at their pleas for water. A
One of the men, his face bleody and INDIANAPOUS MOST POPU LAR HOTEL

one shoulder shot away, apparently
was within a few minutes of desath.
“Please boys, give me a darink’ J.EDWKRAUSE, Presldenl&Manager.
he moaned. A laugh from the hun-
cdreds of spectators was the only re- 3 -
ply. The correspondent rushed to a /Od/aOaPO/(S /DO/ ==
house for water and when hs re-
turned he was faced by a sword and
quicKly drawn pistols and teld to
keep away. *
RERSERRT When the man begged agein for —m ————
water ‘for God's sake,” a young
woman with a baby in her arms,
————| placed her foot on the mangled body —
and sald: “I'll see you in hell befora
you get any water.”
e The meh apparently had been
dragged down a rock road behind
an automoblle, Their clothes were
torn and pieces of gravel were im-
bedded in their mangled flesh, l

,L\ it ;_.

| IU_ZZL é”lfb@ NN _w éd/
[L LU NN MAA—, [
;/M 3 1/ [/V’\A[//’V\(AJ )\/z/ Z/u/t/// _
Ad [ ddndy /ro Louked. pl
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SAXL, GOMPERS

CINCTNNATI OHIO

THE FEROCIOUS AND IVHUIAN ATROCITIES PERPETRATED IN ILLINOIS
DEMAND YOUR UNQUALIFIED CONDEMNATION WHATEVER THE PROVOCATION
AND WHOEVER WAS RESPONSIBLE LAEBOR WILL SUFFER IRREPARABLE
INJURY UNIESS YOU IMMEDIATELY TAKE OFFICIAL ACTIGY AUD GUADANTEE
TO PUNISH THE OFFENDERS I SPEAK AS ONE WHOSE SYMPATHY AWD
FRIENDSHIP FOR LABOR IS UNQUESTICNABLE,

J. A. H, BOPXINS EXECUTIVE CHAIRMIAW
OF THE COMMITTEE OF 48

131P
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Raleigh Hotel,
Waghington, D« C.,
June 26, 1922,

Kr. Samuel Gompers,npresident,
tmerican Federation of TLabor,
Washington, D. C.
Dear Sir and Brother:
I thank you for your courtesy in having hended me
while in Cincinnatl a copy of the telegram from lir,
J. A. Ho Hopkina, Executive Chairman of the Committee
of 48, under date of June 23rd, dealing with the tragedy
at Herrin, Illinoisg, to which you office had made no

replye.

Sincerely yours,

Preasident.



WILLIAMSON COUNTY
June 29, 1922

WERLE OFFERED
CEIVASLE OP

EVERY

CON-
PORTUNITY TO
MAKE PEACE WITH CITIZENS.

,0,._——-

The following is a statement of
Wm. J. Sneed, of Herrin, state Sen-
ator from this district and also sub-
district president of the the United
Mine Workers. Senator Sneed was
called from Springficld late last weck

hecause of the strip mine trouble.
The senator is also a member of the
Constitutional Convention which ig
now in sion.

Wh apnened at the Southern
Ilino Cozl Comvany strip ‘mine
six miles south of Herrin, was so out
of kceping with the harmony and

peace that has reigned so completely
for twenty years in Williamson Coun-
ty, that it is not only a shock to her
citizens but to the entire State of
1l Tvery sincere honest trade
unioist regrets it as well every

other citizen of our great common-
wealth. The miners union is against

physical force in the adjustment of
disputes; for more than twenty years
the Unjted Mine Workers have dealt
jointly without the use of violence
with the coal operators in this county.
the great rank and file of the member-
chip of the miners union in William-
son County have been and are con-,
‘sidered among the best of our Ameri-!
can citizenh. In the midst of one of
the gratest of labor suspensions in the |
industry, Williamson County
miners noted for the quict,
harmonious, and peaceful attitude;
with which this suspension has
vailed The question arises what ana’
who is 1'csprm‘<ihle for this
tragedy, the snulfing out of the lives

rage

mining
were

pre

great

of almost a score of men and the
wonnding and maiming  of  zevield
arore and the destruction of thou-

sands of dollars worth of pxopmt\
Lester said

~
i

i 35 u

e oo
adiae

is \gll(u\ 3

as

that, “The miners here are nothing
but ‘bolsheviki’ and that the County
is Yout semblance of law. State
£ and county officials seem

powerless to cope with the situation.”

s

MINER

He savs that he did his hest to have
Governor Small send troops, telling
the Governor that hell would break
loose down there unless action was
taken. Again it mav be asked who
iz responsible for the detaining of |

such a eondition as deseribed by Mr.
Lester, what are the facts that led
~up to what Mr. Lester termed the
necessity for troops? The Southern
Iilinois Coal Company operated their

contract with the miners union,, when
the present suspension came on he
asked permission to strip coal stat-
ing that it would not be ‘the policy
of the ctompany to load coal until an
agreement was entered into by and
between the coal operators and min-
ers. He adhered to this policy until
about the middle of June, when his
men were informed that they would
be expected to load coal or accept
their money. The men refused to
load coal violation of the policy
adopted by their International Policy
Committee and were discharged. Men
were imported to load this coal, with

in

-

mine for about a year under a labor!

them guards and gun men. Tnese
guards were given high powered rifles
and side arms which they flourished
when intercepting and intimidating
citizens who traveled the public high_
way, both night and day.

Many were those who were held
up by these guards at the point of a
gun, some of them complained of be-
ing slapped in the face while guns-
were held on them and thy were told

o “stick ’em up.,” one guard telling
hls victim that he ‘“‘eats ’em alive.”
This was so common that the sheriff
and States Attorney were appealed |
to by citizens. Sheriff Thaxton and
deputis and States Attorney Duty
went to the office of the Southern
Illinois Coal Company and when they

{hy the chief ousrd th get back in
their ¢ hat they wrre on private

2ot out of their automobile wers told

property. They asked to sce Sup

MceDowell and again were told to get
in their car until Supt. could b2
brought to them, this they refused
to do proclaiming their rights as
American citizens telling guards who
thy woere, When Sunt. MeDoweil an-
vearad, after a confernce the superin-
tendent agvzed to see that guards
weve kept off of the public highway
‘and that they would not display guns.

The follmvnng day a representative

¢

. Were impersonating

!
1
ol

H

Chicago

of the Tribune was told at
the peint of a pun te et of this
negperty. Two of th T men
ritvee badwes which statod  that
thov were State € ‘ He in
formed that this was a Caleagn ops
ganization and that he was leut-
in this organization; they told

hlm tﬁat made no difference, to “beat
it.””  He left their property.
Citizens appealed to me as

ino that
I investigate this matter and report
same to the Governor. As there is
no State Department, in com-
pany with two newspapermen, I went
to the county seat, met the sheriff
and requested him to go with me and
assist in ascertaining if these guards
State officers.
Col. Hunter, representing Adjutant
General’s office, having been sent to

—
sucen

| Marion to investigate trouble grow-

ing out of intimidation, accompanied
us to the coal company’s property.
On arriving there, we were shown in-
to the company office where we dis-
cussed this matter and were told that
there were two members of the State
Constabulatory there who had badges
as charged. but would not be permit-
ted to wear them. While there
saw a vast amount of ammunition,
both for shot gun and high powered
rifles. One newspaper man asked if
there wasn’t a law curtailing the
amount of ammunition that might be -
kept on property by private individ-
uals.

we

He was told by Supt. McDowell

that this was kept for shooting ducks. *»

The sheriff, Col. Hunter and myself
requested that the company co-oper-

cate in every way possible to keep

down trouble. Prior to this time, an
adjoining company of which Mr.
Lester is a stockholder, got orders to
discharge all of these men, which was
done, the company bringing the night
crew from the Southern Illinois Coal
Company’s plant to take their places.
The men’ discharged complained to
the miners’ officials insisting that they
be reinstated.
matter up with Mr. Ctiger the Supt.
and he informed us that he had to
obey orders and as he only expected
to construction work, that the U. M.
W. of A. had no jurisdiction, but ad-

ruction
ruc

ed were entitled to the cons
work. It was rumored that A. B.
McLaren of Marion, was associated

with Mr. Lester in these properties.

{ mitted that morally, the men discarg_

"

The officials took thiz "".-

-



non-union basi

y &

{to accept the re seale for 1917,
1

tand no ciheck-oil agreement, with the

| knowledge of these facts T personally
Lester's friends

went to some of Mr.
in Marion, telling the

i stood he contamplated running

i
| ; ;
| m that 1 under-

[mine on a non-union basis, asking|

!them to intercede with him not to do

ki |

, this as there was a

breeding serious trouble.

i I was told that Mr. Lester and as- that Steamshovel Men's Union was in|whick had been ;nwvv’ouslv be
:d this matter and | good standing e,
2 going to work
basis and
it was sald,
troops zent /|

Esociates ad discus:
i they had said they
ithe strip mine on this
‘Ithey kad any troub!
‘that they would have

a
the

of |

if

+'in as they could get them if necessary

‘and that they
ing. ‘After
7/;

LELeT

e

TGS

+ -
the gua
i

some

and load ¢
decided not
he immediately began loading coal.
n discussing the matter of employees!
with Supt. McDowell, he informed
me that all men employed outside of

an

were membpers

of

“The miner cfficials knrr\!‘fmg T MR
Laren personally, having dealt

him for years, felt that if he weas
associated with Mr. Lester that we
could prevail upon him to reinstate
the old crew of men where Mr. Stiger
was superintendent. Accordingly,
‘we went to Marion, made an investi-
gation and found that Mr. McLaren
was in no manner connected nor did
ke own any stock in cither of these
properties. therefore, he could not
intercede or adjust tne dispute that
Along with this controversy
were beingi
made by the press and from other |
sources among the miners in this
county, that the coal operators would |
try to open their mines with non-
union labor if it was not for the min-
ers Qualification Act, which provides!
that before a man can enter the mines

to dig coal he must have had two
1o face of the

| existed.

rumors and stateme nts

vears cxperience at 4
;‘oal and pass examination. Soma of
the operators contending that this
bo appointed by the governor,
we members of the miners union
and controlled by them, therefore, it
was impossible for the operators to
employ non-union men ip the mines
as they could not qualify under these
circumstances or they might attempt
to open their mines.

o] Wy mon\r‘

would cost them noth-
digeussion of this!
“atter, I was told that Mr. Les
bad conclodad ¢ 7 i

) ul'r n-union
W that he had
ot 1t. however,

the

" 3 Y g 4 BT e |

inshavel Mon's Umion, that there-

~ ' T T . |
tore these nen tad beo

ng permission o t
I by i Sot

> highway by an armed guard
was taken advantage of by the press
only reply re-'anc otherwise to
ceived that time.|pear f
Mr. Lester and Mr. MeDowell having !
stated that U. M. W.
jurisdiction over
i ¥

Laster quoted by

eyt IS
rarrmuagoon,

Mr.

Lewis’ was the

ologram at Nnt

.
t
for the gath

of A. bad no|were accused of attacking the men
S e e e : . :

this work. Mr.|vwho were loading the coal for tas
presg to the effect! § Iilino Coal Com

thern S

0

3 with A. F. of L. I|bers of the miners union under
Bl F'not Mr. Lewis’ telegram should|tract, and with the understanding
be given to the press also. Immedig! htat same would not be loaded until
ately after this was done, incendiaries! an zcrosrment bad hoen consummatod
1 I‘,‘:‘:‘atedwthat mass meet_| by and between the coal 0{)‘:1':1‘:0;’1‘:
ing were called and Lewls’ telegram|and miners. In my judgement as
read by men who made inflamatory|well as that of every other citi
‘:‘;peeches, urging mob violence. This|who understands wha‘t Mr.
15 untrue. Mr. Lewis’ telegram in
'no wav or manner was read to a mass
| meeting or v it const
effect by the in an iflammator
| way, being co ed only as a mat-%k

R
mimedla

[ &
. In surrounding his property with i
ported gun men an.

ued to the

n import

toading the ¢

. : sl under the S0 clveumstan-

ter of information, pointing out the| .- the blame for this :V;: 1 )‘1'( :
g CHR 4 g% 5 o=

status of the Steamshovel DMen’s, a1 ; ; A ol o
| vib air, not oniy is this company

Union with the
ito DMr. Lester’s
Mr.

these men =
es, but they are also
ble for the stizma and !
- that has
ned itself upon the citizens of
Williamson County and the City of
Herrin. by importing hired men whe
cared nothing for the peace a
tranquility of an honored community,
who used every devise apparently at
their command to precipate trouble
It is a well known fact by hundre
of our best citizens that the she
and his deputies; the State’s Attorvey
Col. Hunter and many influentia
s e ¢ lcitizens did everything humanly pos:
(A sibie co-operating together to ward
' off this great crime that has beer
committed against Williamson Coun:
ty and her citizens, as well as tarnist-
ing the fair name of the great state
s of Tilinois. And in the language
! A RS said to have been used by Mre. Lester
: ;his company should be made to pas
{anc pay dearly {cr this outrage ever
‘ta the exten. «f taxing them for the
. ten and making it i
‘ o r:ible for him to ever again attemp!
possible for him to ever again attepp!
to fasten onto any community suct
el i e as huz come to Williamson County
through his efforts and to whicl
every American citizen should anc

does resent.

!
i
|
|
i
|
|
I

; the press.

-
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CLASS OF SERVICE | SYMBOL CLASS OF SERVICE | SYMBOL
Telegram TR Telegram
Day Letter Blue Day Letter Blue
Right Message Nite Night Message Nile
Hight Letter N L Night Letter N L

If no~e of these three symbols
appears after the check (number of
words) this is a telegrarn.  Other- ; words) this is a telegram. Ot cr
wiseits character is indicated by the . wiseits character is indicated by ths

symbol appearing after the check, NEWCOMB CARLTON, PRESIDENT GEORGE W. E. ATKINS, FIRST VICE-PRESIDENT symbol appearing after the check,

If none of these three symbols
appears after the check (number of

RECEIVED AT 21-23 N. MERIDIAN ST., INDIANAPOLIS, INDJ{_QLWQY,S,,GPEN : Cmgepiry
D414CH NPR s g

0B CHICAGO ILL 25 ; RN AR

JOHN L LEWIS Q)5 .
'PRESIDENT UNITED MINE WORKERS OF AMERICA.PLEASE LOCATE THROUGH

WILLIAM GREEN SECTY U M U A AND DELIVER TONIGHT INDIANAPOLIS IND
REGE] VED AUTHORIT AT IVE | NFORNATION AT HERR IN NEWSPAPERKEN OF
CHI1CAGO TIPPED OFF TWELVE DAYS AGO BY HONNOLD THAT OPERATORS |NTEMNDED
MAKE TEST CASE AT STRIP Il NE AND CLEAN OUT .SOM NI NERS SEVERAL WENT
THERE ON THAT .1 NFORMATION THOUGHT YOU .MIGHT DEMANDCONGRESS |ONAL
INVESTIGATLON PLEASE WIRE STATEMENT FOR NEWYORK TRIBUNE PRESS RAT;JJ

; \ /x‘
COLLECT CARE CGREAT NORTHERN HOTEL REGARDS CZ

i F10F FEK
i | o GILMAN. PARK ER.«LJ/D' {) 4+
DA 740P FBB - [\ . 5G| RY (UM 0QY
5 4t§ v~ PE) > £ =N mc CCUNTER AM
DA T48P el f , g | SR o
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CLASS OF SERVICE DESIRED Y 1 €. i8
im > E?ﬂ‘ 9 L‘ 3 k R ;/}

Telegram Li i"‘ﬁ e

Check

Night Mo sago

Day Letter ,——_
|
|

> w. < i R 4 '
Might Lotter ﬁﬁm gﬁa E / ) E%_%
Patrons sheuld mark an X oppo- L &asad & mmf\\w’f e’ G k-4 =g
site th 5 of service desired;
OTHE™ THE MESSAGE

£ oy
VILL B TR/ s S
WILL BE TRONS UTIE S AN NEWCOMB CARLTON, PRESIDENT GEORGE W. E. ATKINS, FIRST VICE-PRESIDENT

o l FULL-RATE TELEGRAM

Send the following message, subject to the terma
on back hereof, which are bereby agreed to

Chicago, Ill., June 27, 1922,

Ellis Searles,
Ralsigh Hotel,
: Vashington, D. C.

Nemes are Don Ewing Associated Press and Ralph McCanna Chicago
Iridbune who went there several days before killing3.That in
itself 1s enough.- See my first edition story Saturday mornlng
first part of column two. Informant quoted is Ewing. Please
give me scoop statement if Lewls acts care Great Northern
Hotel. Advisable you regard source this informetion as
confidential. ' '

Parker,

e venn AvasvTTaaE ALICISARE, BUDRject To the terms
n back hereof, which are hereby agreed to

Washington, D. C., June 26, 1922,

Hr. Gilman Parker,
¢/o Great Northern Hotel,
Chicago, Iilinois.

Lewis showed me your telegram He hesitat

Lev j e . es to act in the m
witgout more def'inite-information. Can you wire me Raleigh ﬁ§§§§
names of some newspaper men who went to Herrin in responsé to tip

that was given them by Honnold. This inf
grounds for action. information might afford

Ellis Searles.

Chg. United Nine Workers.



United Mine Workers of America

e r o O A Tl | RS ‘w\\v‘ o s
e -
JOHN L.LEWIS -4 \\ AFFILIATED WITH
PRESIDENT : % A.F.oF L.

OFFICE OF THE PRESIDEMNT
Indianapolis, Indiana

Raleigh Hotel,

Waghington, D. C.,

July 12, 1922.

Mr. Earl E. Houck,
1112 Merchants Bank Bldg.,
Indianapollis, Indiana.

Dear ¥r., Houck:

I am enclosing, herewith, coples of telegraphic
correspondence between mysell and Mr. Searles asng Mr.,
Gilman Parker, Staff Correspondent of tne New York
Tribune. Mr. Parker is rather sympathetic in his
attitude toward ocur organlzation and its asplirstions
and presumably does not want to be known ia the matter
as it might affect his newspaper standing. It seens
to me, however, that it mignt be well for you to look
into the matter and to at least interview those rep-
resentativea of the Chicago Tribune and Associated
Press who went to Herrin upon receipt of informationm
from Dr. Honnold. It might be possible for you to
secure from them statements or affidavits which would
be of later value to us in case civil procedures are
entered agalinst our organization. I would also be
glad to have you tske this matter up with Mr. Warrun
and acquaint him with the contents of this correspond-
ence and secure his advice thereon. .

With kindest regards, I am
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UNITED MINE WORKERS OF AMERICA - -

DISTRICT NO. 1%

W. A, SHERMAN, Presmss R OFFICES:

WILLIAM RYAN, VICE-PRESIDENT HOK-109 BEVERIDGE BUILDING
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ALBERTA

Box 1844, Calgary, Alberta,
sSeptember 30th, I822.

Mr, John L. Lewis, President,
United Yine Vorkers of America,
HMerchants Bank Bldg.,
Indianapolis, Indiana.

Dear Sir and Brother:

I wish to draw your attention to a certain matter
which we believe will be to the interest of the organizaiion
and the men who are now under arrest in connection with the
Herrin, Illinois, mine fray during the recent strike. A
certain person by the nane of Richard lMcClennan visited our
office today who informs us he is the father of one of
thespecial police who proceeded to Herrin for the purpose of
protecting the companies properties and he is one of the two
living witnesses to give evidence against the miners in the
coming trial. He is of the opinion thatif he could meet
his son personally, who is now under seperate guard in Chicago,

he would be able to persuade him to leave there and return
to Edmonton, Alberta.

Mr. McClehilan has letters in his possession showing
that he was an active member of the Carpenter's Labor Organization
in the United States and by the accounts we have received
sympathized with the miners dur ing the recent strike.

The proposition he has put up is that he proceed
to the States in an endeavour to get his son back with him
thereby preventing him from giving evidence and the only re-
compaise he expects is transportation, salary and expenses.

If you think it worth while to interview him
I would ask you wire me immediately where you wish him to proceed
to.

g Trusting you will give this matter your
immedicate attention I am,

Yours fraternally, .
Dist, 18-
RP:A- ; ; '
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THE HERRIN
CONSPIRACY

s

J

Herrin’s heinous crime is a
challenge to America, the Mother
of us all—of the newcomer to her
household no less than of the
native born. It is a challenge
that must be met now. It is a
challenge that mustbe met stand-
ing.—Boston (Mass.) Transeript,
June 28, 1922.

An even more vital reason for
prompt action is seen in the tem-
per of the men, which carries
with i1t a threat that the atroci-
ties committed in Illinois this
week will be repeated in other
mining fields.—St. Joseph (Mo.)
Press, June 24, 1922.

Until this coal mine butchery is
legally avenged Americans canno
longer boast that in the United
States the Constitution is su-
preme.—7The Sun, New York,
July 6, 1922.

Issued by

The National Coal Association
WASHINGTON, D. C.
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THE HERRIN CONSPIRACY
A comprehensivestoryoftheslaughter

as presented by investigators
]
and eyec-witnesses

IN a wooded grove midway between the
mining towns of IHerrin and Marion
in Williamson County, Ill., a crime was
committed on the morning of Thursday,
June 22, that stirred the indignation
and aroused the horror of America as
had not been done since the stories of
war atrocities committed by the Huns
ceased coming across the ocean.

Nearly fifty men—the exact number is
uncertain—who shortly before had been
taken out under a flag of truce from the
strip mine of the Southern Illinois Coal
Company a few miles away and who had
been promised that they would be fur-
nished safe escort to the railroad station
whence they could entrain for their homes,
were lined up in front of a barbed wire
fence, and hemmed in by union miners in
military formation.

Scarcely before a plea of mercy could
be made, shotguns, rifles and revolvers
in the hands of 500 men arrayed in a
semi-circle about the miserable group,
poured a storm of lead into the bodies
of the captives. Many fell at the first
volley. Some got through the fence only
to be shot down in flight. Others es-
caped the fusillade to fall vietims later to
a savage man hunt that harried the fugi-
tives for hours through the surrounding
countryside. Some of the dead were
mutilated, the dying were kicked and
beaten, the captured were tortured and
then slain.

When the ghastly work was over, nine-
teen of those who were working in the
mine were dead, several died later of the
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34 who were wounded and a number ard
still unaccounted for. Such was the out-
rage committed in a union district upon
men who were merely exercising the uni-
versal law of the right to labor and who
had been employed by William J. Lester,
president of the coal company, to operate
the strip mine from which the members of
the United Mine Workers of America had
walked out.

An Attack on Government

This organized murder of American
citizens was the result of the determina-
tion of a branch of the United Mine
Workers of America to maintain as an
absolute stronghold the supremacy of the
Miners’ Union in Williamson County over
and above the law of the State and the
law of the Nation.

It was anarchy; it was the placing of
the aim of the union as the supreme law
of Williamson County. It was a vicious
attack upon the fundamental principles
upon which our Government was founded.
. The right of any American to do his work,
a basic principle of our Constitution which
guarantees liberty and protection, is
an issue far above any question between
the United Mine Workers and opera-
tors, and it concerns not only the coal
miners and coal operators, but every man
and woman in this country. It concerns
every industry, every home.

What does this uprising mean? It is
the concern of every citizen of the land.
Every American must view this crime
with the utmost concern, for the issue
involves the very foundations of our Gov-
ernment. What happened in William-
son County may happen in almost
any community in the country, if every
effort is not put forth to bring the assas-
sins to justice. Indeed, it was the boast
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of the organized band who committed this
murder that in Williamson County, at
least, America would be shown that the
law of the union reigned supreme.

These murders grew out of what has
every appearance—irom the bare facts
collected—of a well-organized conspiracy
to stop the operation of the strip mine.
The investigation indicates that the con-
spiracy was developed over a period of
four or five days during which the senti-
ment of the members of the mine workers’
union in Williamson County was intensive-
lydevelopedagainstthestrip mineworkers.
Plans for the attack were carefully laid.
Then the assault began. This assault was
interrupted by a truce arranged in accord-
ance with the wishes of the officials of
the United Mine Workers of America, and
the County officials acquiesced, as did the
owner of the mine who agreed that no at-
tempt would be made to reopen the mine
during the strike.

The facts relating to the whole affair
have been assembled here in order to give
a picture of the situation in Williamson
County and a comprehensive story of
what happened.

A Union Stronghold

Williamson County, Illinois, which has
a population of 61,038, is in one of the
most strongly unionized centers of Amer-
ica. Marion, the county seat, has a pop-
ulation of 9,582, and Herrin, a population
of 10,986. It is conservatively estimated
that 85 per cent of the residents of the
County are miners or connected with them
by family ties or otherwise, and reflecting
unionized labor sentiment. All business
conducted in the County is dependent to
a vital degree upon the patronage of the
mining element. The mining vote elects
or defeats candidates for public office.

5
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“strip ‘miners.
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Many of the public oflicials holding
elective office are miners, have been
miners, or arc in strong sympathy with
union labor whose strength is such that,
without question, it is its vote that elects
or defeats any candidate for local or
county office.

The most outstanding local figure in the
events leading up to the massacre, is
Sheriff Melvin Thaxton, who persistently
refused to swear his deputies or to call
for the Illinois National Guard, as he
was urged to do repeatedly by Col. S. N.
Hunter, representing Adjutant General
Carlo Black of Illinois, for three days be-
fore the surrender and butchery of the
Col. Hunter had arrived
in Marion on June 18 to keep an eye on
the situation. The Sheriff is an ex-
miner, and was elected by the mining
vote, and is now a candidate for county
treasurer.

There is ample testimony that Sheriff
Thaxton is physically not a coward. In
times past he has been cool, courageous
and vigilant in supporting the law. Single-
handed he stopped thirteen prisoners in a
jail-breaking attempt two years ago. He
has to his credit successful intervention
in a number of attempted lynchings.

The Judge and the Mob

County Judge Hartwell draws a picture
of the mob which shows its caliber when
met by a determined spirit. A crowd
went to the Judge’s home. They de-
manded that he deliver over to them his
collection of fircarms. He dared the
young fellows to come and get them, at
the same time directing his wife to load
as he fired. The mob faded away.

Prominent also in the three days pre-
ceding the attack on the mine was State
Senator William J. Sneed, president of
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the Sub-District of the United Mine
Workers of America—a resident of Her-
rin. He appears to be the leading poli-
tician of the County, insofar as the labor
vote is concerned. The labor vote, which
in a previous election had been led by
Sneed in the interests of another political
faction, was reversed under Snced’s con-
trol and support thrown to Len Small,
successful candidate for Governor.

The State’s Attorney of Williamson
County is Delos L. Duty, whose family
has been slightly identified with union
miner interests. Duty, who was elected
by miners’ votes, is on record as express-
ing very serious doubt of his ability to
convict mob conspirators, leaders and
members of the mob. ‘“To get a jury
not imbued with the ideas of the labor
unions will be impossible, I believe,” he
said, and added, “the killing was un-
human beyond words.”

Brundage Infers Conspiracy

Edward J. Brundage, Attorney Gen-
eral of Illinois, views the Herrin massacre
as “murder in cold blood after the strip
miners had surrendered.” That the At-
torney General believes a conspiracy ex-
isted 1s the inference to be drawn from his
statement that ‘“‘the riot was not spon-
taneous; the mob gathered from several
counties at a central spot.”

William M. McCown of Marion, the
Coroner of Williamson County, was a
union miner and is admittedly a union
sympathizer. ' R

The principal business of Williamson
County is digging coal from deep mines,
of which there are thirty-two. There are
also four strip mines where huge shovels
scrape the earth from thick veins of coal
which run near the surface. Other
shovels then lift this coal into cars. It
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was against the strip mine, owned by the
Southern Illinois Coal Company, of which
William J. Lester is president, that mem-
bers of the United Mine Workers of
America directed an attack. As an op-
erator Mr. Lester played a lone hand,
and was not a member of any coal oper-
ators’ association.

Strip Shovels Continue Work

When the deep mines were closed by
the U. M. W. of A. strike April 1, last,
the stripping shovel at the Lester mine
did not cease operations. The stripping
shovel was kept at work, meantime, and
no objection was made by the strikers as
long as no attempt to mine coal was made.
Men manning this shovel, or rather the
crews operating it, were members of the
Steam Shovel Men’s Union, an organiza-
tion not affiliated with the American
Federation of Labor.

About June 10 Lester made preparation
actually to dig and load coal and addi-
tional men, some of whom were rated as
track layers and others as guards, were
put on the property. This development
was instantly resented by the union
miners, and the question arose as to the
status of the men employed at the strip
mine. There was also the openly voiced
feeling of resentment that armed guards
were on duty at these strip mines.

As early as June 13, it became mani-
fest that a plot against the mine was
brewing. Robert Tracy, of Chicago, a
locomotive engineer, reported to the mine
for duty, and in examining the engine
firebox found ten sticks of dynamite and
two cans of powder therein. Two days
later, says Tracy, picketing of the mine
began.

The Sheriftf and State’s Attorney and
U. X, W. of A. oflicials protested to Mr.
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Lester and his superintendent, C. K.
MecDowell, against the employment of
these armed guards; said that they were
trespassing on public property and hold-
ing up traffic. The strip mine people
were told that they were courting destruc-
tion, if they continued to dig coal. There
is on record the statement that McDowell
declared that if any guards were outside
the mine boundary they were disobeying
his instructions. It was also said by some
who conferred with him that he promised
to disarm the guards, but this is not veri-
fied.

There was talk of boycotting stores
which were supplying the men with pro-
visions, and the union miners also were
sent to watch railroad stations where addi-
tional workmen for the strip mine might
arrive. Col. Hunter notes that two of
these workers, detraining at Marion, were
intercepted by union miners and ordered
away, and did leave.

The Telegram from Lewis

There was discussion among the strikers
as to the status of the strip mine workers.
On June 18, Senator Sneed wired John
L. Lewis, International President of the
U. M. W. of A., asking for an official rul-
ing on the status of the strip mine work-
ers. Sneed received the following reply:

Indianapolis, Ind.
June 19, 1922.
William J. Sneed,
Pres. Sub-District 10
District 12, U. M. W.of A.

Your wire of eighteenth, Steam Shovel
Men’s Union was suspended from affilia-
tion with American Federation of Labor
some years ago. It was also ordered sus-
pended from thc mining departmment of
the American Federation of Labor at the
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Atlantic City convention. We now find
t¥1at this outlaw organization is permit-
ting its members to act as strike breakers
at numerous strip pits in Ohio. This or-
ganization is furnishing steam shovel
engineers to work under armed guards
with strike breakers. It is not true that
any form of agreement exists by and be-
tween this organization and the mining
department or any other branch of the
American Federation of Labor permit-
ting them to work under such circums-
stances. We have, through representa-
tives, officially taken this question up
with the oflicers of the Steam Shovel
Men’s Unionand have failed tosecure any
satisfaction. Representatives of our organt-
zation are justified in treating this crowd
as an outlaw organization and in view-
ing its members in the same light as they
do any other common strike breakers.

(Signed) JOHN L. LEWIS.

Published in Local Press

On Tuesday, June 20, this telegram was
printed in the Marion Daily Republican
as that paper’s leading news article. It
was given similar treatment the same day
in the Herrin Journal. There is every
reason to believe that the contents of this
telegram became known to practically all
of the union miners and their sympa-
thizers over the whole of the coal field on
Tuesday and Wednesday.

The first mass meeting that the miners
held after the receipt of the telegram to
discuss a program of action against the
strip mine workers, it is related by Col.
Hunter, was held early Tuesday after-
noon, June 20. He was informed that the
miners were in session at the Sunnyside
Mine. Col. Hunter avers that he went
to the office of State Senator Sneed and
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told the latter of the meeting, whereup

Sneed replied:

“I know about it.
for alarm.”

Col. Hunter says that a little later 1
told Sheriff Thaxton of this miners’ mas
meeting and asked the Sheriff to send
deputy, who resided in Herrin, to th
meeting and ascertain what was going on
The Sheriff promised to do this, Col
Hunter says. There seems to exist :
strong probability that some definite ac-
tion against operations at the strip mine
was agreed upon at this Tuesday mass
meeting.

The next day another meeting took
place. Of what was done at this meeting
and of the effect actually had on the minds
of the miners and their friends, the
Marion Daily Republican of June 22,
said:

"There is no cau

Meeting in Cemetery

“An indignation meeting was held in
the cemetery in Herrin on Wednesday
morning, June 21, at which time the
feeling was running high, and the tele-
gram of John L. Lewis calling these
shovel men common strike breakers, was
read. Soon afterwards a mob raided three
hardware stores in Herrin, obtaining a
few guns and rifles and 5,000 rounds of
ammunition of all kinds.”

Walter M. Sims, editor of the Chris-
topher Progress, published in a mining
town fourteen miles from Herrin, wrote
in his publication:

“The trouble (the massacre) followed
after an indignation meeting was held just
outside of Herrin on a road to the mine
Wednesday morning following the publi-
cation of a telegram from John L. Lewis,
president of the United Mine Work-
ers, which stated that the workmen at
the strip mine who ave members of the
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Shovel Men’s Union were ‘common strike
breakers.””

Writing from Herrin, Thoreau Cronyn
said in the New York Ierald of July 12:

“A veteran of Williamson County to
whom the correspondent showed the copy
of this (Lewis’) telegram, pushed his
spectacles up on his forehead after reading
it and said:

“¢Everybody down here knows how the
union miners felt about this and how cer-
tain words inflame them. I should not
say that the word outlaw riled them so
much, but when Lewis officially told
them that those fellows out at the Lester
mine were to be treated like any other
strike breakers, I should say that it was
about the same thing as saying: ‘Hike
out there to the mine and clean ’em
out.””

Prominent business men of Marion and
Herrin say that when they heard the men
on the streets and in business places talk-
ing excitedly about the message from
Lewis that they felt certain a violent out-
break was but hours distant.

Out of these meetings meantime the
conspiracy to stop the operation of the
mine had been developed. The initial
move to invest the strip mine has all the
ear-marks of an organized effort and it re-
sulted in the first open act of hostility.

The First Hostile Act

On Wednesday morning, June 21, at
eight o’clock, say the union miners en-
trusted with keeping any more men from
reaching the strip mine, additional work-
men were unloaded from the Chicago
train at Carbondale, Illinois, about four-
teen miles from the mine. These men
were put into a mine truck which was fol-
lowed by a mine automobile. There were
eleven men in the two machines. At a
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point three miles st of Carbondale, men
m a strange automobile preceding the
truck fired shots into the air, as if by pre-
arranged signal. Tmmediately, shot gun
firing was directed from underbrush along
the roadside.

Some of the cleven strip mine workers
were wounded seriously and others fled,
followed by volleys of shot gun firing.
“Mark” Delaney, who was in charge of
the strip mine party, made his way back
to Carbondale and telephoned to Supt.
McDowell at the mine, relating how these
two automobile loads of men had been
fired on and stating that some of them
had been wounded and taken to the Car-
bondale hospital.

Events Known to Officials

All these events had not escaped the
ears and eyes of state, city and county
officials. Col. Hunter, after visiting the
mine, talking to the Sheriff, State’s Attor-
ney, and other city and county officials in
Marion and Herrin had concluded as early
as Monday, June 19th: that “the local
officers were in sympathy with the bellig-
erent miners, but had agreed to maintain
order.” Hestated further,however,thathe
had no confidence in the Sherift’s avowed
intention or his ability to cope with the sit-
uation and protect the men. He made this
report by telephone shortly before noon
on Monday to the Adjutant-General.

Hunter told the Adjutant-General that
the Sheriff had promised to protect prop-
erty and life at the mines. The Colonel
advised the Adjutant-General to have
two companies of the Illinois National
Guard, one at Salem and one at Cairo,
notified to be in readiness to entrain for
Marion on an hour’s notice. These two
companies could have been in DMarion
within four hours.

13



The Sheriff’s naction

The Adjutant-General told Col. Iunter
at this time to “lay down™ (bear down) on
the Sheriff and have him do his full duty
in the way of securing an extra force of
deputies. That afternoon the Colonel
asked the Sheriff what he was doing to get
more deputies and also informed him that
the two companies of troops were ready
to respond to any request the Sheriff
would make. The Sherift said that hz
felt his regular force of deputies was sufhi-
cient for the przsent, and that for Col.
Hunter to tell the Adjutant-General,
“Troops would not be needed to put down
trouble at the mines.”

Later in the evening Col. Hunter re-
ported to the Adjutant-General that the
Sheriff had not sworn in more deputies
and did not anticipate the use of troops.
Col. Hunter got after the Sheriff again on
Tuesday morning in regard to securing
additional deputies. The Sheriff replied
that the wild talk was dying down, and
Col. ITunter asked him if this was not a
result of the wide-spread rumor that two
regiments of troops were headed for
Marion. The Colonel declared that this
report was out and did have a noticeably
quieting effect on the streets until night-
fall when there was a resurge of excite-
ment, and anger attained new heights.

The Colonel talked to miners on the
street, found they were at the breaking
point and went again to consult with the
Sheriff. He reports that he “demanded
of the Sheriff that he swear in a large
force of deputies, including business men”
and was informed by the Sheriff that he
“had the situation well in hand,” to which
Col. Hunter replied:

“Swear in deputies or ask for troops.”

Wednesday morning, the day before the
massacre, found events moving swiftly
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toward inevitable disaster. State Senator
Sneed, who had gone to Springfield on
official business on Tuesday evening, was
not available to advise with the Sheriff
the nest morning. When Col. Hunter
stepped out on the street early on June 21
and found the whole countryside was liter-
ally boiling with excitement he 1mme-
diately went to the Sherift’s office to see if
that official had not finally been stirred
into action, since it was absolutely clear
that a mob of unprecedented size was be-
ing gathered to wreak vengeance.

Calling of Troops Urged

Col. Hunter found the Sheriff quite
placid, with no new deputies and uttering
his stereotyped expression: “I have the
situation well in hand.” Col. Hunter
grew emphatic in urging the Sheriff to
make a request for troops. This was done
in the presence of State’s Attorney Duty.
The Sheriff said that he had no idea of
calling for troops and Duty offered the
Sheriff the advice that, “If I were a Sheriff
I would not call for troops under any
circumstances.” To Col. Hunter, Duty
said that he had full confidence in Sherift
Thaxton. Col. Hunter hurried away
from the Sherift’s office, resolved to lay his
case before the business men of Marion.
He got C. R. Edrington, secretary of the
Greater Marion Association, and informed
the latter that the Sheriff had absolutely
balked at swearing in deputies or making
a request for troops.

The Colonel and Edrington agreed that
something ought to be done immediately.
They decided that the best move would
be to get a commitlee of reputable busi-
ness men, mine owners and union miners
to visit the strip mine and ask the men
there to suspend operations. By tele-
phone they summoned A. B. McLaren, a

.~
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wealthy and influential business man of'
Marion; Ralph Mitchell, General Super-
intendent of the Earnest Coal Company
and Y. II. Rix, a union mine worker offi-
cial. This conference had hardly assem-
bled before the news was flashed about the
attack on the strip mine truck near Car-
bondale. The five men at the conference
decided to do all they could to have a
larger meeting of business men in the
evening. :

Edrington continued for some hours to
telephone to responsible people asking
them to attend the contemplated evening
conference. Between messages he re-
ceived reports that armed men were com-
ing into the Herrin district from far away
points. The business men in touch with
Edrington told him that they had this same
information. Edrington and Hunter again
tried to locate Sheriff Thaxton to apprise
him of what the business men’s committee
was attempting to accomplish, and to tell
him that a concerted assault on the strip
mine was in prospect, but the Sheriff had
gone, it was said, to investigate the shoot-
ing at Carbondale.

Raids on Stores Begun

Beginning about one o’clock and con-
tinuing for a couple of hours telephone
messages were received at the offices of
the Greater Marion Association relating
how hardware stores had been raided in
Herrin for guns and ammunition.

Alarm was immediately spread in
Marion advising merchants dealing in fire-
arms to conceal their stock. T'wo placesin
Marion did not get this warning and were
raided. One small band of would-be
looters, called upon Edrington as head
of the local American Legion Post, to
deliver to them several rifles belonging
to members of the Post. Edrington re-

16

fused, explaining that there was no am-
munition available for the guns.

The Afternoon Battle

On Wednesday at 1:37 p. m. Col. Hun-
ter telephoned to Adjutant-General Black
reporting the attack on the truck and the
looting of three stores in Herrin. Col.
Hunter also told the Sheriff’s office about
the stores being looted and was informed
|by a deputy sheriff that this was the
office’s first word of the occurrence.

In the meantime the organized armed
force of wunion miners, following the
meeting in the cemetery near Herrin,
had moved a couple of miles east and
was ready to launch the attack on
the strip mine. Attackers deployed over
a front several hundred yards long and
put the mine under heavy fire at about
3:00 o’clock. At 8:15 Supt. McDowell
called the Greater Marion Association’s
office and informed Col. Hunter that a
battle was on in full swing and that five
hundred shots had been fired by both
sides. McDowell said that the miners had
marched up close to the mine and had
gone under cover. McDowell requested
Col. Hunter to inform the Sheriff of the
battle. At the Sheriff’s office Deputy
Storm reported the Sheriff still absent.

“I instructed Storm to call on all avail-
able deputies and proceed to the mine to
disperse the mob and to remain there un-
til the Sheriff returned,” says Col. Hun-
ter, who added that he asked Storm to
get the Sheriff by telephone and tell him
that he ought by all means to put in a
request for troops. Storm’s reply was
that they “could handle the situation.”

Adjutant-General Black was told of the
latest situation by telephone and his ad-
vice to Hunter was to “see that the
Sheriff gets on the job.” Ifunter got the
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Sheriff’s office on the wire again and was
informed by whoever answered the tele-
phone that Deputy Storm was enroute
with deputies to the mine. That Storm
or deputies went to the mine is unverified.
A few minutes later Supt. McDowell
called from the mine to tell Col. Hunter
that the mob had gotten bigger and to
inquire if Sheriff Thaxton had been lo-
cated. Hunter told McDowell that he
had been informed by the Sheriff’s office
that the deputies were on the way to the
mine.
A Survivor’s Story

Engineman Tracy, in his account of
how he saw the Wednesday afternoon
battle start, gives his opinion that the
shots fired at his locomotive, at that time
quite a distance from the mine, were the
opening ones of the attack. Hardly had
he reached camp before bullets began to
rain in from a house and from nearby
clumps of trees and embankments.
McDowell grabbed a gun and gave Tracy
one. He mounted a ridge and began
shooting.

Under oath, Bernard Jones, a mine
guard, says he saw union scouts in the
woods June 20th, and that the following
afternoon bullets began to whip up the
earth near him. He and three compan-
jons mounted an elevation and made the
attackers retreat to a white farm house
five hundred yards distant.

At 8:50 p. m. Assistant Mine Superin-
tendent John E. Shoemaker, brother-in-
law to W. J. Lester, telephoned that fire
from the defenders had struck down at
least two union miners in the attacking
party. McDowell took the telephone
again and inquired if the Sheriff had been
found and had made a request for troops.
All Hunter could tell McDowell was that
he was still trying to locate the Sheriff.
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At 4:14 p. m., ‘when Col. Hunter got
McDowell on the wire and found the
battle was still raging and no sheriff
and no deputies could be found to inter-
vene, McDowell put his case in Hunter’s
hands and asked for advice. Imme-
d1ate}y Col. Hunter suggested that a truce
be effected and outlined terms. MeDowell
agreed and Hunter told him that he would
act at once.

The Truce

While Col. Hunter was trying to locate
union mine workers’ officials relative to
the truce, he got word from Mr. McLaren
and C. F. Hamilton, business partner of
quter, that they had told Lester that the
mine was under heavy fire and he said he
would close it, and that he would try to
get a telephone message througH to
NICDOWCI{I;ttO this effect. McDowell’s
agreement to accept a truce was put befor
Fox Hughes, Sub-District Vicef)Presiden?:
and ranking U. M. W. of A. official on
the spot. Hunter asked Hughes if he
thought he could get the attacking party
to agree to a truce on the terms as out-
lined to McDowell and Hughes replied
that he thought this arrangement would

be agreeable to the union miners who were

attacking.

“I told Hughes I would instruct
MecDowell to put up a white flag of truce
when ‘he saw the union miner officials
approaching under their white flag of
truce,” Col. Hunters says. The Colonel
then asserts that Hughes told him
that he (Hughes) and Hugh Willis and
William G. Davis (the latter secretary
and treasurer of the miners’ union) —
these are three of the best known and most
prominent U. M. W. of A. officials in
Williamson County—would go to the
mine under their white flag of truce.

Hunter immediately advised McDowell
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that the U. M. W. of A. officials had
agreed to the truce and were headed for
the mine. Ile then got Hughes on the
wire again and told the latter of what he
had just telephoned to MeDowell. Hugh
Willis and Davis soon thereafter appeared
at the mine under their flag of truce and
the firing stopped, they later reported to
Hunter. McDowell telephoned to Hun-
ter that the flags of truce were flying and
that gun-fire had ceased.

A short time later, Hughes and Willis
reached the office of State’s Attorney
Duty at Marion, and called Hunter
and his Aide, Major R. W. Davis, to
Duty’s office. Sheriff Thaxton was there.
“Hughes and Willis announced to the
meeting that both sides at the mines had
flags up and there was no firing,” says
Colonel Hunter.

The White Flag

Engimeman Tracy’s version of how the
truce was established and firing brought
to an end late Wednesday afternoon is
substantially as follows: he stayed on the
elevated point using his rifle until Superin-
tendent McDowell went up to him and
sald to him, ‘“The Union President is
there and I am going to have a conference
to stop the firing.” 'Tracy did cease
shooting and says that “A. P. Finley,
the time keeper, got out a white sheet and
sent it by a man named Jones to Tracy,
who hung it up on the wires.” Tracy esti-
mates he was shot at about fifty times
while he was hanging the sheet up, but
that this firing died away and he crawled
down and out of danger.

Tracy makes this peculiar comment,
“then it developed the miners’ president
had not appeared after all,” and he adds
that there was sniping all through the
night. HHe said he could hear the attack-
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ers drillimg in the field surrounding the
mine and that the commands “squads
right” and “squads left”” came clearly to
his ears.

The Terms

At the Wednesday evening meeting in
State’s Attorney Duty’s office, where Col.
Hunter and Maj. Davis went in response
to a telephone call from Fox Hughes and
Hugh Willis, Sheriftf Thaxton also being
present, Col. Hunter says he repeated the
statement that responsible business men
of Marion who had talked over long dis-
tance telephone to the owner of the strip
mine, had given him (Col. Hunter) posi-
tive and reliable assurance that the mine
would be abandoned and closed so long as
the U. M. W. of A. strike lasted. The
Colonel asserts that there was a clear
understanding of all the terms of the
truce, which both sides had accepted.
The Colonel says these terms were under-
stood by everybody at this meeting to be
as follows:

(1) Both sides to hoist flags of truce
and cease firing.

(2) The men in the strip mine to be
afforded protection in getting out of the
County and that the mine property be
not damaged.

(8) The mine to be closed for the
duration of the U. M. W. of A. strike.

Hughes and Willis left the conference.
Turning to Sheriff Thaxton, Col. Hunter
asked him point blank if he felt sure
he could hold up his end of the truce
agreement and the Sheriff then stated that
he had “deputies at the mine who could
handle the situation, and that he felt cer-
tain the truce would be observed and the
trouble ended.”
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shouted they would take us on a train
and let us go back home.”

Prisoners Throw Up Ilands

Tracy says that all rifles were laid down,

and shells put between cars and that all
the prisoners put their hands over their
heads and walked out into the open.
This was in accordance with instructions
given by the attacking miners and repeat-
ed by McDowell and Shoemaker, as an
order to the strip miners, Tracy avers.
The attackers came hurrying up from all
directions, some of them firing their guns.
They yelled in exultation.

“A man who acted like a leader shouted
at them to quit firing at us,” Tracy goes
on. ‘“He was a little heavy set fellow
about forty or forty-five years old, weighed
about 170 pounds, dark complected
and dressed in a dark suit. He waved a
big automatic pistol and yelled ‘Now you
ought to use judgment, there is no use
getting excited or starting any trouble
whatever. I am a leader of this bunch.
Listen to me and we will take them down
the road.’

“A mob yelled him down and some of
them told him if he didn’t shut up they
would shoot him. They said they were
going to kill the whole bunch.”

The march smacked very much of mili-
tary discipline, and although there were at
least 8,000 men mostly armed in the crowd
around the prisoners, those in charge
were able to secure obedience to their
orders.

Tracy describes how ill treatment of the
prisoners was kept up as they marched
along but the violence was not desperate
except in the case of McDowell. He was
made an immediate target for blows
which were not long in bringing about
his death. '
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Jones’s Story

Another account of the surrender and
start of the march from the mine is given
under oath by Bernard Jones, the mine
guard who was quoted above. Jones says
of the Thursday morning events:

“The white sheet (the flag of truce on
the wires) was taken down because the
mob yelled “T'ake that damned flag down.’
We knew there would be a battle.”

The prisoners felt they were in a trap
and some of them were panic stricken,
Jones asserts. McDowell said “Some-
body ought to go talk to the attackers.”
Jones says that he went out with an apron
tied to a broom and told the victors that
the strip mine workers were ready to sur-
render provided they were given the assur-
ance of being allowed to walk out unmo-
lested. Jones says he called out, “I want
to talk to you” and that aleader answered.
Jones describes this leader as being 24 or
25 years old, weight 160, 5 feet 9, with
sharp, freckled face, light haired and tot-
ing a rifle. This leader, Jones asserts,
agreed to the proposition of letting them
out unmolested provided “you come out
unarmed, with your hands up in the air.”

McDowell overheard this promise, says
Jones, with the result that “we were all
formed in line, hands up, and walked west
on the railroad tracks 150 yards to where
the union men were congregated. The
prisoners were covered with rifles and
pistols by their captors who rushed up
close and searched them for weapons.”

Jones estimated that there were 3,000
armed men in the crowd to which they sur-
rendered. He said the victors began slap-
ping the prisoners who were marched two
abreast down the railway tracks. About
200 yards had been covered when the
prisoners were told to take their hands
down and their hats off. McDowell was
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struck and kicked. When the prisoners
were forced to go on a trot McDowell
was unable to keep up because of his peg
leg and he fell two or three times. The
treatment of McDowell soon became so
brutal that he could go no further.

The Murder of McDowell

Tracy describes the killing of McDowell
in more detail. The procession had got-
ten to a place called Crenshaw Crossing
and the prisoners were being beaten pretty
generally when a new leader appeared,
and was hailed as “Tom™ or “Bill.”
Tracy describes him thus: “A big fellow,
50, stout, weight 190, 5 feet 10, with a
week’s growth of beard, rawboned, dress-
ed roughly, wearing blue overalls and felt
hat.” 'This leader singled out McDowell
and said to the latter that he had put
Howat in jail in Kansas but would never
put anybody else in jail.

This leader began beating McDowell
over the head with a .45 caliber automatic
pistol and kept it up for about 200 yards
when he took McDowell out of line and
knocked him down with a heavy blow on
the side of the head. Tracy said he saw
some six or eight women, some of them
carrying babies in their arms, kick
MecDowell. Tracy did not see this par-
ticular leader any more. The caplives
were nearing the place where the ghastly
job was to be done and the leaders, se-
lected for this work, began to spread their
instructions to the armed strikers, as the
following versions of survivors show:

Halt to the march was called, says

" Jones, by “a gray haired man, weight 190

to 195, aged 45 or 50, so gray he was
white, stubby mustache, in overalls, wav-
ing a .45 caliber Colt who shouted: ‘I
want to shoot all the * * *°”

Jones says the reply made to this gray
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haired man was “We will take care of
them when we get to IHerrin.,”  The
march was continued about a quarter of
a mile further up the road when another
fellow stepped in and made a speech,
Jones says, about what should be done
“to us on account of his beloved union
brothers being bumped off the day before
or being killed.” TUnder oath Jones de-
clares: “The speaker said ‘Boys I will
show you what to do with them.” ”

This speaker is described by Jones as
5 feet 9 or 10 inches, weight 190, dark
hair, dark complexion, dressed in dark
clothes and carrying a revolver. One
young fellow in the crowd shouted to
the speaker “Listen, buddy, don’t rush
things, don’t go too fast.”

To this the new leader replied: “To
Hell. You don’t know nothing, you have
been here onlyaday or so, I have been here
for years, T have lost my sleep 4 or 5
nights watching those scabs and I am go-
ing to see them taken care of.”

But the march was continued until the
procession drew very close to the power
plant where a halt again was called. Jones
describes how, at this point there came
up from the rear a “heavy built man, dark
complexion, dark haired, wearing a Fe-
dora hat,” who talked to the miners at
the head of the line and asked who had
operated the machine gun. This ques-
tion was put to the prisoners, who said
they didn’t know.

Tracy remarks that it was at this point
a man ‘“who all the strip miners said was
an officer of the Miners’ Local appeared
in an automobile, drew the mob leader
aside and after talking to him pointed to
the woods.”

The Massacre

Tracy says this man in the automobile
then drove away while the leader led the
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column into the woods and co.amanded
that “every fellow that has got a rifle
come forward; you fellows that ain’t got
no rifles stay back.” Tracy estimated
that about 500 men, carrying pistols,
rifles, shot guns, and all kinds of weapons
followed the prisoners into the woods.
The leader lined the strip miners up at a
barbed wire fence and shouted “when 1
give the command every fellow fire.”

At this order there was a rush among
the armed men to get close up in front.
Tracy says he could “hear the guns cock
as they pulled up.” Then came the order
to run. Tracy ducked under the fence
and fled at top speed, turning only to look
back and see men fall while their pursuers
reloaded and shot into them again.

Jones remembers someone saying, just
before the massacre took place:

“Listen men, I want to talk to you.
We can’t take these men to Herrin but it
will be all right to take them out into the
woods and field and start them on the
run and then all of you can get a shot at
them.”

This plan prevailed. After a while,
Jones says, the order to fire came from the
“leader and the rest of them, all of them.”
Jones heard them shout “come on you and
start to run for that fence and field.”
It is Jones’ opinion that several shots
were fired before anybody started to run.

From Eye Witnesses

Two St. Louis Globe-Democrat reporters
seated in an automobile pulled up at
the edge of a road, saw the cavalcade pass.
They wrote as follows: “The advanced
guard rattling by in scores of flivvers had
screeched the news “We got ’em.  They’re
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coming.” And they came, the limping
mine superintendent blinking and trying
to ward oft further blows.” Others were
about as much battered.

A semi-official account of what hap-
pened after the prisoners had passed a
point where the two newspaper men saw
them is as follows:

The Slaughter at the Fence

Thefirst desperate violence to the prison-
ers came after fresh bands of men from
Zeigler and other points had joined the
mob marching the prisoners toward Her-
rin.

Approaching the power plant, a young
chap, about five feet seven tall, to whom
recognition was given as leader, halted the
prisoners and their escorts. He gave
orders for the column to move to the right
which would take the prisoners off the
road and put them into the woods back
of the power house.

At a point immediately in the rear of
the power house and not more than 250
feet distant from it, the prisoners were
halted about twenty feet from a four-
strand barbed wire fence. The prisoners,
46 or 47 of them, were lined up as targets.
The 500 armed men were arranged in
two squads, forming a shallow “V” or
semi-circle. This boxed the prisoners in
and gave them no opportunity to get
away from the gun-fire except through the
barbed wire. The command was given,
and the dead and wounded began to drop
and a “rabbit” hunt with men as the
game ensued. Many who got through
the wire were killed and others wounded.
Some of the wounded were mutilated after
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they had been brought down to earth by
bullets.

Reporter Sces Mutilated Victims

The first newspaper man to arrive on
the scene, in the woods, J. E. Hendricks,
of the St. Louis Post-Dispatch had been
held up an hour in Herrin by a crowd
which had told him that what was going
on was the town’s own business and was
nothing for the newspapers. Finally he
got free enough to follow a crowd stream-
ing from Herrin to a woods on the edge of
town. Arriving at the scene of the
massacre, he saw several of the prisoners
with throats cut and one man hanging
to a tree. At another point where it ap-
peared at least six men had been taken
into a cemetery, and three killed and three
wounded, their clothing showed they had
been dragged over the ground, after hav-
ing been tied with rope. In the far dis-
tance men could be seen running, pursued
by little groups of other men, much as
rabbits running from hounds.

Another account, given by a man who
went unarmed with the mob, says:

“T saw one man shot with a shot gun
which tore a hole in him where you could
see his heart and it was shot half in two.
One fellow begged me to help him. I
told him if I saw anyone looking for him
T wouldn’t show them where he was, but
that was all I could do for him. He just
begged me not to shoot him. He said
the other man told five of them that they
would turn them loose if they could run
through fire and they said they would.
The other four were killed and he was
shot twice, but not bad.”
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Stories of Slaughter

The Associated Press correspondent
whose accounts of the massacre atrocities
made the nation shudder with horror and
caused Congressman Dennison to attempt
denial on the floor of the House, under-
went gun-fire and more than once risked
his life to witness the concluding phases
of the massacre. This man is a veteran
reporter from the Chicago office of the
Associated Press. :

Arriving in Marion at 8 o’clock on the
morning of the butchery he was rushed by
automobile to the mine where he saw Col.
Hunter and others making futile effort to
check the work of the firebugs and looters.
He was told that the strip miners had
surrendered and hearing gunfire coming
from the direction they had taken, he
jumped back in his auto and went in pur-
suit of the marchers. This was just about
the moment when the shooting at the
barbed wire was taking place.

Some ten minutes drive from the mine,
the hired chauffeur refused to go further
because a crowd of armed men could be
seen on a knoll near the road. 'The
A. P. man proceeded on foot. He found
several jeering six of the victims, three
of whom yet exhibited signs of life. All
had ropes around their necks. He heard
one of the wounded men beg piteously for
a drink of water. At this, he hurried to
a house 100 yards distant, picked up a
small pail partly filled with water and
ran back toward the spot.

He was stopped by a large man of the
mountaineer type who pulled a pistol
from his holster and commanded “keep
back there, don’t come around these fel-
lows.” Others in the crowd drew pistols
and menaced him. The leader was of
distinctive appearance, weight about 200,
age about 45, height six feet two, raw-
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boned, much sunburned, light hair, a
clearly American type. lle wore faded
blue overalls and shirt and spoke slowly,
but without a Southern drawl. The brim
of his black slouch hat was covered with
dust, as though he had been with the
marchers from the start.

Two of the three wounded men con-
tinued to plead for water. “Give me a
drink before 1 die,” said one of them.
At this a comely woman of 24 years ap-
parelled neatly in a light flowered cloth
dress and carrying an infant of a year in
her arms, put her foot on the body of the
suppliant and exclaimed: “I’ll see you in
hell before you get any water.”

The Man Hunt

The Associated Press correspondent
was then ordered to “move along.” As
he neared the woodland massacre scene
he saw three men jump from hiding places
about 100 yards distant and run for their
lives. Some 200 yards from the running
men there appeared a group of pursuers
who fired as they leaped forward. Ten
seconds later another band began shoot-
ing at the fleeing prisoners. The Asso-
ciated Press man was caught in a cross
fire with bullets whizzing past him from
two points. As he raced for safety he
turned to see one of the three prisoners
fall. What happened further to the fallen
man or his companions the Associated
Press man could not see.

Getting into the woods where the
butchery had reached its height, the
Associated Press correspondent came up-
on a man strung up to the stub of a broken
tree limb. Lying on the ground a few
feet distant were two other men, each
with a rope around his neck. It did not
appear they had been hanged but both
were dead of bullet wounds.
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The woods were swarming with men
armed with pistols and shot guns. Two
men carried sawed off riot guns. The
Associated Press correspondent, at a
point about 100 yards distant from the
hanged man, stopped beside a wounded
man who was writhing in agony and ask-
ing for a drink: “I wish I was dead” he
muttered. A half dozen times he said
this.

Pleas for Mercy Bring Kicks

Instead of exciting pity, the man’s dy-
ing words seemed to make the men stand-
ing around him angrier than before. They
cursed and kicked him. Apparently irri-
tated beyond control, a man of foreign
type, stockily built, about five feet seven
in height, with high cheek bones, a long
flowing mustache and chin that came to a
sharp point opened a pocket knife and
with the exclamation, “I'll make you
dead” plunged the blade into the helpless
prisoner’s throat.

Although it was thought for a time that
six of the prisoners had been cut out of
line and tied together and then shot down
before the procession reached the power
!1ouse woods, the best account of this
incident now has it that the six were
stragglers who had gotten through the
barb wire and were rounded up, roped
together and marched through the Herrin
Cemetery, then marched back out of
Herrin and told to run. Gun fire brought
one of them down, and he pulled the
others off their feet. Their pursuers then
rushed up close and fired into them at a
distance of four or five feet.

One of these men, Howard Hoffman, of
Huntington, Indiana, lived long enough
to reach the hospital where he is credited
with telling Doctor Black and the nurse
that his throat was cut and men jumped on
him after he was down. Another one of
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these men told the doctor or nurse at the
Herrin Hospital how, after he had fallen,
one of the men stretched his head back as
far as possible so that another might easily
cut his throat. This man died without
his name being learned and he was buried
with the othcr umdcntlﬁed dead in the
Potters Field at Herrin.

At the Morgue

On the street in front of the morgue in
Herrin, the following day, the Associated
Press man, encountered the mountaineer-
like man who had held him back from giv-
mg a drink to the wounded man on the
knoll. Asked when the inquest would be
held, the big man replied: “There don’t
need to be any inquest, everybody knows
they’re dead. ® The dead were first piled
in a heap in a corner in the morgue.
Later the clothing was removed from all
the bodies and they were laid in a row
and thus exposed wholly to view. Lines
of men, women, boys and girls filed
through the morgue and joked at the
. sight. Later some portions of the bodies
were covered. Here and there was a
body so filled with small shot that scarce
a half inch square surface of the skin had
escaped.

The visitors did not hesitate to gloat
over the “fine” work the mob had done.
One woman leading a little boy, exclaimed
as she directed his attention to the lifeless
bodies: “Take a look at what your papa
did, kid.”

Edward Miller, 1545 North Clark St.,
Chicago, told-a St. Louis Post-Dispalch
reporter that he and another of the strip
mine men escaped wounded into a barn
where they were located by man hunters
who fired bullets into both of them, kill-
ing Miller’s companion.

Robert MecLennon, Jr., of 525 N. La
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Salle St., Chicago, told the same reporter
that the cool-headed miners who were
escorting the prisoners were outnumbered
from the start by miners who wanted to
kill. The leaders counseled against vio-
lence until the woods were reached, said
MeclLennon.

Fred Bernard of Chicago, escaped by
turning left when, as he says, the leader
of the mob gave the command to “turn
right.”  He was fired upon and fell un-
hurt. Pursuers ran up to him. Ie told
them he had a union card in his pocket.
He finally proved he was an Elk and was
given assistance in escaping.

Sherman Holman, one of the wounded
survivors, declares he fell wounded along
side Assistant Superintendent John L.
Shoemaker and describes how pursuers
came up and remarked “the * * *ig
still breathing, anybody got a shell?”
and that Shoemaker was then shot
through the head.

The Coroner’s Jury

At theinquest held by Coroner McCown
in Herrin on Sunday, June 25th, over the
bodies of 21 victims of the massacre, no
effort was made to establish the identity
of any of the men who killed the unarmed
prisoners. “‘Parties unknown” did the
killing according to the verdict.

The Verdict

About twenty-five witnesses were exam-
ined by the jury and the following verdict
was returned:

“In the matter of inquisition over the
bodies of deceased held at Herrin, Illi-
nois, on the 25th day of June A. D.
1922, we, the undersigned jurors, find
that they came to their deaths by gun
shot wounds by the hands of parties
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unknown on the 22nd day of June A. D.
1929,

“We, the undersigned jurors, find from
the evidence that the deaths of decedents
were due to the act, direct and indirect,
of the officials of the Southern Illinois
Coal Company. We recommend that an
investigation be conducted for the
purpose of fixing the blame personally
on the individuals responsible.”

The record also says that one man was
burned with a hot iron; that a hot iron
was used to mutilate the dead. It was
also stated this was true by Editor Dro-
beck who described how the word “scab”
was branded on Supt. McDowell’s body.

Proof of a Plot

That the massacre was the result of an
organized movement is the conclusion
drawn from the following statements:

It was a seemingly well organized,
remarkably sober, determined, resolute
aggregation of men and boys fighting, as
they put it in their own words ‘‘to pre-
serve the unions,”

is the declaration of Colonel Hunter.

Writing in  the Williamson County
Mainer, the publication owned by the
U. M. W. of A. men in this field, Editor

Drobeck as an eye witness, says:

At daybreak the 3,000 armed citizens
(surrounding the mine) realizing that the
future peace of their county was at stake,
formed what has been termed by many,
one of the neatest columns of troops ever
seen in the vicinity, worked their way
into the stronghold of the outlaws and
captured those that remained alive.
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Several of those that were taken from the
pit alive were taken to the woods near
Herrin, where later they were found dead
and dying. There were no riots, merely
the citizens of the county acting in the
only way left them for the safety of their
homes. The faces of the men who were
killed in the disturbance are horrible
sights. Uncouth, as all crooks must be
at the beginning, they were doubly un-
attractive as seen after justice had
triumphed and the county had again re-
sumed its normal peace-time behavior.

Editor Sims in the Christopher Progress

says:

The whole of Williamson and Franklin
counties was in turmoil until late Thurs-
day and on Wednesday afternoon the
miners in Zeigler and West Frankfort
were canvassing the business districts
and homes for arms and ammunition,
and we doubt whether there was much of
either one left in their towns after the
cars had left for the scene on Wednesday
evening.

We have talked to several who were
near the scene of rioting and many have
reported to us that no city in the com-
munity showed their colors so much as
the city of Zeigler which is located in
Franklin County. At least three hundred
strong men journeved in cars from
Zeigler on Wednesday evening and al-
most every car was loaded with men,
guns and ammunition.

More than a month after the massacre
scarcely a visible effort has been made to
discover or punish perpetrators of the
crime.
in condemning the ghastly outrage and
demanded action but none has been taken.

The press of the. country united

3



State and local officials have taken the
position that it would be impossible to fix
the responsibility because Unionism con-
trolled Williamson County. In the mean-
time the bodies of the unidentified dead
have been buried in Potters Field.

Shall the assassins of innocent American
citizens go unpunished?

It cannot be possible that Illinois will
not take further official cognizance of these
mfamous acts, as the first and Jast tribunal
of the country, our American citizenship,
will demand that lawlessness, murder and
massacre are not and never shall be per-
mitted to undermine the security of not
only the nation’s industries, but the very
Jives and homes of our people.



June 25, 1924.

Mr. Harry Fishwick,

Acting Pres. Dist. 12, U.M.W, of A,
Mine Yorkers Bldg.

Springfield, Ill.

My dear Mre Fishwick:

I am todey making firal financial report of
the personal injury cleims arising out of the Herrin riot .
I have a balance of $350,00 remaining in the fund, I am
enclosing my check made payable to you as acting rresident
of District 12 for this amount.

As I understand it, the Internationsl Union
has loaned District 12 the sum of $108,975.00.

I em sending copy of my final report to Mr.
Farrington, also copy to Mr. A. W. Kerr.

Yours truly,

EEH-LW,
Encl.



United Mine Worlicrs of America
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MERCHANTS BANK BLDG.

Indianapolis, Indiana
June 20, 1924.

Mr. John L. Lewis, President
United Mine Workers of America,
1114 lerchants Bank Bldg.
Indianapolis, Ind.

My dear lr. Lewis:

Enclosed I am submitting final financial
report of settlements of all the personel injury claims
erising out of the Herrin riot of June 22, 1922.

I have worked in conjunction with kr. A.
W. Kerr, chief counsel of District 1l2. We have had
numerous conferences with plaintiffs and attorneys for
plaintiffs. Releases have been taken in all of these
cases in duplicate, one set is in the hands of Mr. Kerr
and one set on file in my office. The cancelled checks
are on file in my office.,.

I am pleased to advise that the statute
of limitation expired June 22nd of this year, therefore
if there are any other claims they are outlawed.

The money to settle these claims has been
advenced by Secretary Green for the International to
District 12. There is & balence of $350.00 on deposit
but I have today meiled a check for this asmount to
Harry Fishwick, acting President of Distriect 12.

Yours truly,
EEH-LW, 3

Inecls C;:;a PN Vi
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Letter sent to Mr. Williem Green ’
My, Frank Ferrington
Mr. & W, XKerr.
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_Mr. Earl E. Houclk,
Of'fice.
Dear Mr. Houck:

I -acknowledge receipt of your note of June
25th, same baing final report of settlements of all
personal injury claims arising out of the Herrin Blot
of June 22, 1922. I have read it witn infersst,

Please accept my congratulations for the
splendid service you have rondsred our organization
in these matters.

Very trmly youre,

Pregidente
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The filing time as shown in the date line on full rate telegrams and day letters, and the tims of receipt at destination as shown on all messages, is STANDARD TIME.

R_ .ived at 18 N. Meridian St., "~dianapolis, Ind. AL¥AYs

AB524 SHEET 2/36 , ‘ SR e i
TO ME. HERE AND | WILL. IN TURN ENDORSE. IT .AS.PRESIDENT.FARR INGTON
"HAS WITH THE OTHERS. 1 AM LEAV ING. HERE. FRIDAY EVENING: |
UNDERSTAND MESSRS. HOUCK AND KERR ARE TO WEET.PARTIES IN CHICAGO
SATURDAY

- HARRY FISHWICK. «



Send the following message, subject to the terms
. on back hereof, which are hereby agr 1 to

Indianapolis,Indl a,
June 11, 1924,

Harry Flshwlek, Vice President,

District 12, U.ll."". of Aa.,

I1llinois fline Voriers Bldr.,

Sprinefield, Illinois,

mire recolved. lave authorized payment of amount suppested
and edjustment on basis reconwended by attorneys. lir, Houek
will avrange details,

John L. Lewig,

Charge to United liine Viorkers.



FINAL REPORT OF EARL E. HOUCK ON SETTLEMENT
OF CERTAIN CILAINS IN HERRIN,ILLINOIS,LITIGATION.

September 19, 1923, Deposited in the Chicago

TPrust Company, Chicago, Illinois, check endorsed
to me by Frank Ferrington, President District 12,
for settlement of personsl injury claims arising :
out of Herrin matter $100,000.00.

Claims settled en.September s 1928,

Amount given Mr. McKier- Total Amt.

to Claimant nan's r'ee of Claim
George Hall, Admr. Estate of Geo.
Hall, Jr. and Geo. W. Walkup, Jre 2,000.00 1,000.00 3,000, 00
Eric Miller . 7,500.00 2, 500,00 10,000.00
Robert C. McLennon 4,500.00 1, 500,00 6,000.00
Joe Sodter 760,00 250,00 1,000.,00
Frank N. Fuller 750,00 250,00 1,000.00
Frank Schmidt 2,625.00 875.00 3, 500,00
John Rogers 760.00 250.00 1,000.00
Mary Kearney, Conservetrix, Est.
of Thomes Fleming 3,000.00 1,000.00 4,000.00
Mike Hilosh 281.25 935,75 375600
George W, Gosman, Admr. Kstate
of Horetio Gosmen 3,000.,00 1,000,.00 4,000,00
¥yrtle Ritcher, Administretrix
Estete of Robert Marsh 2,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00
May 1. Chisppetta, Executrix
Estaete of Sidney korrison 6,750.,00 2, 260,00 9,000,00
Williem Cairns 6,625.,00 1,875.00 7,500.C0
Patrick Joseph O'Rourke 9,000.00 3,000,00 12, 000.00
Will J. O'Rourke ‘750,00 250,00 1,000.00
Ronmert Tracy 750,00 250.00 1,000.00
RiChard. W@SCh 575000 125000 500.00
Andrew Riber 281,25 93.75 375.00
Ed Rose 2,000,00 3,000.00 12,000.00
John Pittman 662, b0 187,50 780,00
Harry 1. Springer 5,626.00 1,875.00 7,500.00
Odis Lawrence 375,00 125,00 500.00
Allen P, Findley 3,750.00 1,250.00 5,000.00
Co Oo Anderson 750000 250.00 l,OO0.00
David C, Miller, Admr. Estate of
Arthur B. Miller 2,000.00 1,000,00 3,000.00
Je Oo McKiernan, Attorney 24,250.00
Je O. McKiernan, Attorney 1,000.00
Check No. 28 made payable to
Fred Cooper and William Walls,
Investigators to be used in
attempt to settle the case of
Green v. Southern 1llinois Coal
Co. for %$2,000.00 was returned

98,000.00 256,250.00 98,000.00

-] e



Balance on Deposit

November 14, 1923, Check endorsed to me
By Frenk Farrington, President District 12,

$2,000.00

deposited in Chicago Trust Co. 4,500,000
6,500.00
Clsims settled on November 14,1923.
Jemes Cwmings $200.00
Bernerd J. dJonses 500.00
Charles Patterson 500.00
Maurice 1. Delaney 400,00
John Jordan 1,000,00
Anton Heipel 400.00
Sherman Holman 1,500.C0
4,500.00
4, 500.00
Balence on Deposit 2,000.00
April 10, 1924. Check endorsed to me by
Frank Farrington, President District 12,
deposited in Chicago Trust Co. 475,00
2,475.00

Cleims settled on April 10,1924.

April 9, 1924. R. J. Solfisburg, Atty.
for attorney fees in the case of Edw.
Green v. Southern Illinois Coal Company
filed in the Circuit Court of Williamson

Bounty, Illinois $325.00
Edward Green in full settlement of
claim 650,00
Ernest Rensud and C. D. Jones, his
attornsy 1, 500.00

£,475.00



June 14, 1924. Check endorsed to me by
Harry Fishwick acting President of District .
12, deposited in Chicago Trust Co. $4,000,00

Cleims settled June 14, 1924,

John Miller $1, 500,00
Thomas J. McDonald . 4B0 00
Edward L. Collins 750,00
Earl Mankins 750,00
C. E. Boyd -« 500,00
3,650.,00
Balance on deposit. 550,00
RECAPITULATION,
September 19, 1923, Check endorsed by Frank
Farrington, Pres. District 12 $100,000.00
Hovember 14, 1923, Check endorsed by Frank :
Farrington, Pres. District 12 4,500.00
April 10, 1924, Check endorsed by Frank
Parrington, Pres. District 12 475,00
June 14, 1924, Check endorsed by Harry Fishwick,
acting President District 12 4,000.00
$108,975.00
Totel amount claims settled
Sept. 20, 1923, including .
attorney fees $98,000.,00
Total amount claims settled :
No®. 14, 1923, including
attorney fees 4,500,00
Total emount cleims settled
on April 10, 1924, including
attorney fees 2,475.00
Total amount claims settled
on June 14, 1924, including
attorney fees : 3,650,000
$108,625.00
Balence on Deposit Z50.C0

June 25, 1924. Check mailed
to Harry Fishwick, acting
President District 12 350.00
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1114 ferchants Bark: Bldge,
October 12, 19:2,

lr. Rovert Fescock,

3ec. ,Dist ¥18, U.llsWs 0f A.,
Calgary, Alberia,

Denr Sir and Brother:

This vwill reply to youwr lottor. of Zeptember
30th whiéh I an forwarding to lr. William Sneed,
president Sub-District #10, in which Herrin, Williamson
County, Illinois, is located. Irs Sneed will doubtless
communicate with youn on the matter if he is interested
therein, I thark you for bringing theo matter to oy

attention, .

Very truly yours,

Pregidonte.

ce



1114 llerchants Bank 31lde.,
October 12, 1902,

Mre Vm, J; ?noei, ey

Press Sub=Dit,-10,Dlate 12, UsllV. of A,,
Herxrin, Iliinois,

Dear Sir and Brothor:

I am encloaing herewith copy of leticr re-
colived from Robeort Teacock, Secretary-Treasurer of
District #18, at Calgary, Alberta, Canada, If you
are interestedd in the matter please communic&te.with
I'rs Peacock direct,

T7ith personal .regards, I amn,

Very truly yours,

Presidente

co
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Secret Pact
with Herrin

W rys
Vitners, 1 old
Cﬁ«.&.(\‘j“,awl ikt Hif)(v/f

W. J. Lester, president of the
Southern 1llinois Coal company at Her-
rin, had obtained secret permission
from the officials of the coal miners’
uniog in Williamson county to takc;‘
coal out of his strip mine last June, '
according to testimony developed yes-
terday at the hearing before Daniel
J. May of the state industrial commis-
sion.

Edward J. Hargrave of the Hargrave
Detective agency, who furnished
guards for the mine, testified that C.
K. McDowell, superintendent of the
mine, had told him a week before the
massacre that such permission had
been granted by union officials. How
this permission was obtained may be
further exposed durinz the murder
trials at Marion next month. = Such
sanction was repudiated by the rank
and file, who killed AcDowell and
eighteen others at the mine.

Cel. Hunter's Testimony.

Col. Sam N. Hunter of the adjutant
general’s oftice testificd Monday that
the massacre would not hdve taken
place if McDowell had listencd to his
pleadings and had walked out of the
mine under the truce arranged by Hun-
ter. Col. Hunter did not explain that
no protection was offered the men when
they surrendered. IHe charged McDow-
ell with the murder of two union men,
although the Marion grand jury was
not able to get any evidence on this
point. '

Who pays? This s the question that
is agitating insurance companies at
the hearing.

Survivors Live in Terror.

The massacre was described by sur-
vivors who still live in terror. The
stamp of human savagery was fixed so
deep upon their souls that they still
fear the vengeance of the miners may
reach into Chicago and snatch them
from their homes. The aftermath of
suffering, however, was incidental to
the question of fixing responsibility of
insurance companies. Iive or six law-
yers are engaged an an expensive rec-
ord is being made. The points at issue
are whether the Continental Casualty
company, which had insured the Har-
grave Sccret Service, or the Actna In-
surance company, which ecarries the
policies of the Southern Illinois Coal
company, must pay. i




New Yok <0775 Tribune

First tolae( t/u Iruth News l(/:fnmzls 1(/1 ertisements
Sat urday, Tov. ¢, 1922.

¥y dear Mr. Lewils:

I am gathering material for a full-page Bunday afticle
on the troubles at Herrin, as viswed from the aspect of the forlhe
coming trials, and would very much appreciate all the data I can
get on the miners' side of the affalr, such as coplies of newspa=
per controversies over it, an outline of the probable defense, -
and anything elsge you may regard as of value.

It secms to me that, in connection with present ing the
miners® side, 1 mig;ht- do well t0 wmake prominent menticn of the
fact that Ix. ¥, &, Honnold, secretmry of the Illinois €oal Op=-
ergtors' Assoclialion, gave a ®*0ip? to certein €hicago nowspaper-
men, about ten days befors the trouble began, thel a test case -
was going to be made of tha strip mine at Herrin, that machine
guns were going to bs sent theﬂ:e and that %a lat of union miners
were gein %o be cleaned out®, This was related to ke £4évstensnd
by Don Iwing, of the .@saasxmed Press, who witneesed the trouble
act ex win&; en the "t ip% Lre Bwing and Ralph leCanna, of tha
€hicage Tribuneg, on the miners' list of witnesses?

Gan you ascertain for me whether any of the bodies
were claimed, and 1f so, the particulars of each claim and idan-
tifient ion?

Have you been in touch with Mary O'Reilly, of the
Chicago Teashers' Union, and are hex investiggations concerning
Herrin in such shape they ecan be given publicat ion?

Please regard this letter as confidential., Tith best
regards, I an,

8incerely,

Mr. John L. Lewis,

President, Unit 6d Mine Workers of fnerica,
India.na.polia, Indiang.

\UM%MWWW@
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Peraonal. Hoyemoer ¥, 10804
I b¢1han Parker,
- <

L]
/0 JQ R ﬁ”".!.J”J.uO,
Hew Zorik Citye.

Dear Iire Farker

This will reply to your estecmed ?etter of Tovembey
4the The defense of thoge members of the United line
Workers indicted as a result of tne Leryin riots 1s en-
tirely in the hands of the offlcels of District 12, United
Line tLoriers, The Iaternational Union is not in sny vay
aﬂ~uc¢amcd in their defense and has not been in touech with
the partics whon you nentione. It nmight be poagsible for you
to secure gome of the laformation you desire by communlcating
with Dtaté Senator William Je. Oueed, who 1g algo ives 1dent
of the lingc Vorkers Sub-District at lerrin, Illinois

With personal yegards and all good wigheg, I am

" Very truly yours,

Pregident, ¥

/t)(..(.r” '
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United XMine Workers of . hnomea

e

‘_.—d;:m?i;ﬁ"vffml-’.u',:{;ﬂidﬁ‘h's,--,'." e TR s i g z e Y TS EA'A"-;‘»WA..'}'“‘.-
JOHN L. LEWIS i b AFFILIATED WITH
PRESIDENT / : AF. ofF L.

OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

Indianapeolis, Indiana

Marion, Illinoils,
- December 14, 1922.

Mr. Joha L. Lewis, President,
United Mine Vorkers of America,
Indianapolis, Indiana.

"

Desr Mr. Lewia:

I am enclosing, herewith, report on the trials up to
and including December l4th. The opening statement of
States Attormey Duty and The gstatement of Attorney Kerr

are as nearly comnlpfc as I was able to hear them. lany
times during his statement Nr. Xerr would lower his voice
to such a degree that it was practically impossible to
know wnat he wasg saying, but the statements herewith en-
closed show what both Dﬂdes expact to prove, which I think
was what you desired principally. I would suggest that
they not be published in their entirety (if you had such
in mlnd) but a story could be written around them if de-
sired.

I am also enclosing a complete list of witnesses who
have been heard up to this time, giving their identity,
place of residence and a summary of their test ilOﬂJ- &
shall continue to send such a report each day heresfher.

Farrington and Tigshwick were present the first day
of the trial. One of the defendants, Otis Clark, in a
very patinetic voice told me vpshrquy that he tt onwnt
John {(referring to you) would have been down to see him
before this time. I dld not say whether/?fﬁTd or would
not be here later.

The courtrocom 1is crowded to capacity and the best



United Mine Workers of America

Mﬂ)@m}&&ﬁ.«;&m@t:{at&, TR LA e ™ R Y SRes Ty R T R R S RO s
JOHN L. LEWIS b AFFILIATED WIiTH
PRESIDENT i . & F.oF L
’
\ &

OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT
Indianapolis, Indiana

of order prevails at all times. A general expregsion
is that the trilals will be in progress at lesst three
montng. Personally I think it will coasume niore time
than that, judging Ly the number of witnessesg esach
side has summoned.

S
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1114 ¥arohentn Port Eldp,,
June E£2, 1923,

iiye Frank Farrinet oy
Pres. istrict "#18 Be UsHay 0of Asy
Sprir},{’fi L(.«ld I".? ﬁ,.')i«a.

Doar 8ir end Brosthoer:

Within the dant tro 4~ya, Zotr sulta have been
Liled npainst the Intoernntimal uvnion in the "‘m‘hzvrm.t}.
oourt in Indianaynlis by the «lnindistratorg 22 guitntes
8f corvain men who lost tholr 1ives at He ""‘im Thase
potiticns ask *'iw z.‘ecm'er:r of civil dmrapes in lhe
angunt or 10,000 ¥op ench individunl. Our attormeys
are anwiaoa bv ﬁ‘ﬂ ?'ert of the 4istriot govrt 4hat his
information 18 to the eflect that a number» of other
suits of sinilsr cheractor will Le £00ds

L hroucht the matter to ke attentlon of the
Tntersiat lonnl Excontive BHomrd vegtorday and the Board
votedl to leave the entire sucliion & owr oezrwxsa,cxfehe
lepgal stratogy to be emplsvoci 11'1 oy hanls.

In oomaiderntion of the many 1- portrmt aneleq
of tais litiention, T haye asked Iy, Por) B, Loueck
of oux Legal Lown xt"xnnt t9 confer with Chiel Councel
Xorr of district FLB for the purpose of promoting =
mat aal ullﬁ-BI‘EBtﬁnuingo lre Korr may fool free 1o difw
ouss thege matters auite Lully with M, Houtk sa 1
have overy csnfldence in his judpment and discretion.

I will s1s0o be glad to discuss the mntier with
you persosually leter oI\ when apmrtuni Wy offorsa

Vary truly yours,

Pregident,

ce

le
]



FTRANK FARRINGTON 2 LONG DISTANCE PHONE
PRESIDENT ; Main 7443 /9
OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT JUN

DISTRICT NO.12,

S s e
Aine Warkers of Anerica

AFFILIATED WITH A.F.OF L.
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June 25, 1922,

Mre. John L. Lewis, President,
United Mine Workers of America,
Indianapolis, Indianae.

Dear Sir and Brother:-

This is t0 acknowledge receipt of your letter dated June 22nd,
informing me of the suits that have been filed in Federal Court at
Indienapolis against the International Union by the administrators
of estates of certain men who lost their lives at the disturbance
that took place at the property of the Scutherm Illinois Coal Company,
June 22nd, 1922.

I em reguesting our Chief Counsel, Ir. Ae We Kerr to cooperate
with the agents of the International Union in every way possible in
this connection. The agents of the Internationzl Union will find Mre
Xerr very willing to cooperate with them and I am sure his cooperation
will be of value to the International Union and considering that Mr.
Kerr is so thoroughly informed concerning the entire matter, I would
suggest that the agents of the International Union take no definite
action without conferring with him.

Your ‘tru%§4}9 AY
V4 A
J V] o A
i 7 e Py
7 F AN S AANNNy UL,
<3wf w7 T/ /
4 e B

F/G Presidente ‘<::::/i



fobaggadoy llotel,

Aclentic City, Hedey

iy 1i, 1925

iype Learl T. Hayuck,
1112 licrchantg Banlkt Bldge,
Indienapolis, Indlana.

Dear lire Houck:

Ny office advises that 1t has retained fox you a
copy of a letier wrltien under date of July 6th by
Atsorney licKlernan, of Chicago, Illinois, adviginz
that he expected to later file sult for domages foy a
numbey of other individuals allesed to have guffercd
injurics in the ierrla rlotse This 19 to advise thnat
I have nede no reply to the Attcorney and will leave
the entire nmatter in your hands to be dealt with in
connectvion with the lesal vrepregentatilves of District
12, a3 per our previous conversation.

Vexy truly yours,

Presidente

N~

0. £



Jde 0. MNCKIERNAN

ADQORNEY L LAV

19 5. La 8alls St
C}li C&é'o .

August l6th, 19234,
Eerl =. Houck, Esq.,
Ambassador Hotel,
Atlantic City, llew Jersey.

Dear Sir: In Re: Herrin cases.

Your letter of August 13th received. Xindly accept my thaniks for
Same .

I have finally talked to all of the claimants that I have any
knowledge of, and that I have any hope to get in touch with
through making inguiry of those that I heretofore represented. In
addltlon to tne amounts heretofore submitted, I complete the list
as follows:

A. B. Killer Estate $3000.00
Hall Estate 3000.00
Erie liller 10000.00
R. 3. licLennan 10000.00
Joseph Sodter 2000,00
frank i . Fuller 1000.00
FPrank Schmidt 5000.00
John Rogers 3000.00
Thomas Fleming 5000.00
I{ile llilorsh 1000.00

While the total of the clesims as above and in prior letters listed
amount to somewhat more then the esmount that I stated, I thought
the entire matter could be disposed of, you will note by checking
the 1list that there are six or eight additional that we did not
teke into account when in conference. One of these in particular,
Ed Rose, was very seriously injured.

As intirmated in my letter of August 13th, I feel some of these
claims can be settled for en amount less then that named. It

occurs to me that your Organizgtion rnight be willing to pay not

to exceed a certain amount for releases from all parties, and I

am confident if you will give me such & figure, even'if only
gslightly in excess of the figures I first named, that is 100,000,

I feel satisfied I can prevail upon my clients to sign releases.
Enclosed you will find notice of lien on cases that have not been
covered heretofore. I of course stand ready to meet you for further
conferences, or any other action you may have to suggest.

Taking ihis

o tunity to thank you and your associates for your
courtesies, I '

por
befg to remain,
Very truly yours,

J. O, McKiernan
J Ui‘-: -1.‘0 B



LIST OF CLAIMS OF J. W. MCKIZRNAN,
ATTORIZY, ON HERRIN NATTER.

Amount submitted Amount submittel

List of Claims - August 1, 1923. August 1, 1923. as Final.
C. 0. Anderson $1,000.00 $2,000.00
William Ceirns 10,000.00 10,000.00
John Rogers 1,000.C0 $,000.00
Prank li. Fuller 1,000.00 1,000.00
Joseph Sodter 1,000.00 2,000.00
W. J. O'Rourke ~ 1,000.00 1,000.00
Haerry T. Springer 5,000.00 10,000.00
Eric ililler 10,000.00 10,000.00
A. E. Findlay 5,000.00 5,000,.00
Joseph CO'Rourxe 10,000.00 15,000.00
Thomas PFleming 5,000.00 5,000.00
korrison Zstate 10,000.00 9,000.00
Gosman Zstate ( 4,000.00
Karsh Estate ( . 15,000.00 %,000.00
A. B. Miller Estate ( ' 3,000;00
Hall Estate ( 3,000.00
NEW CLAILS.

R. B. licLennan 10,000.00
Mike liilorsh ' 1,000.00
Robert Tracy 1,000,000
Richard Yesch 1,000.00
Andrew Riber 1,000.00
Ed Rose 25,000,00
John Pittman 1,500.00
0dis Lawrence 1,000.00

75,000.00 127, 500.00C



Jeo O, LicKiernan, Atty. at Law,
19 8. Ig Balle Streetl,

Chicago.
August 1l&th, 1923.
Earl E. Bouck, Esq.
Ambassador Hotel,
Atlantic City, N. J.
Dear Sir: IN RE: HERRIN CASES.

I am experiencing some difficulty in getting in touch with three

or four of the parties whose names I gaveyyou some time since, and

I have not therefore been able to learn definitely what they will
demand by way of settlement. I have had interviews with the follow-
ing parties and the amounts set opposite each of their nemes indicates
whet they desire by way of settlement:

. $1,000.00 John Pittmsn « « « « « » 51560.00
o 45000.00 Harry T. Springer . . 10000.00
. l, OO0.00 Odis LaWI‘ence e e o © e o lOOOoOO
e« 2b5,000.00 Allen P. Findlay + « « « 5000,00

G Us Andarson .« « » » » 200000

Robert Tracy .
Richard Yesch.
Andrew Riber .
Hds ROSe o &« =

® o o o
s o o o
e ® o o

Rose is the party I mentioned in my letter of August 9th as being
seriously injured. He was with the Commissary Department and sent
down to the mine by Bertrand. His injuries consist of gun shot

wounds of the spine and he was given the meximum compensation by the
Industrial Commission. Another Attorney represented him in his clsim
for compensation, and that 1s the reason I did not have him in mind

at the time of our conference. I now understend that the Supreme
Court haes rendered a decision holding in effect that labor employ-
ment sgencies are not covered by the Illinois Worimen's Compensation
Law. _

For your information, I have no doubt but what Rose would accept less
than the amount named, and it would be my suggestion thet you make a
counter proposition, in fact I feel this weay about s& number of these
claims. I have endeavored to have certain ones submit smaller

figures, but you can of course realize that I am not in a position

to dictate what they shall demand in the first instance. There is

no question in my mind but what their cases are worth fer more upon
verdict, yet I am usihg my best efforts to make them see the advisabil-
ity of taking something within reason without fighting through & lew suit

In accordance with my action of August 9th, I attach the enclosed
liens on additional cases, namely that of Ed Rose, 0Odis Lawrence,
Robert Tracy, Richard Wesch, Andrew Ziber, and John Pittman.

Would you be disposed to talk settlement without having all the
parties in?

Very truly yours,
JOLI-110B .« Je O . McKinernan.



QFriCcE OF
A.W. KERR
CHIEF COUNSEL LEGAL DEPARTMENT

~JLLINOIS MINE WORKERS BLOG
SPRINGFIELD, I1LL.

TELEPHONE NO,
NDFFICE 992

o Yiteir
AMine Aorkers of Anierica

AFFILIATED WITH A_.F.OF L.

e 2 :
.(//)/'///7//)}%/, ; /(//Amv.i,

RES 6516

~EZge 8

September 7, 1933.

¥r, Earl E., Houck,

Legal Departient,

Indianapolis, Indian
b

'a, ®

ear lr, Houck:
- Yours of the first inst., enclosing stat
of cases discussed, came to me in due season, but I jus
turned to the office and have not been able to answer 1

A. W. KERR

CHIEF COUNSEL
7TH FLOOR
ILL, MINE WORKERS BLDG
SPRINGFIELD, 1LL.

W. J. MACDONALD
7TH FLOOR
ILL, MINE WORKERS 8LOG
SPRINGFIELD, ILLINO!S

THOMAS A. MURPHY
7TH FLOOR
ILL. MINE WORKERS BLOG
SPRINGFIELD, ilLL.

SAM W, GILBERT
DECAYUR, ILLINOIS

JOSEPH A. LONDRIGAN
513 MURPHY BLDG.
EASY ST. Louts, ILL

JAMES B. LEWIS
HARRISBURG, ILLINOIS

GEORGE R. STONE
MARION, ILLINOIS

W. P. SEEBER
BENTON, ILL

GENERAL ATTORNEYS

ement
t re-
t be-

fore. These are death and injury cases arising out of the Herrin
affair. The settlement of five death cases and a number of in-
jury cases were up for discussion between Mr. Me Kiernan, an
attorney in Chicago 2ond Messrs. Warrum, yourself and myself,
representing the organization. The conference was held in
response to a reaquest from Mr. Mc Xiernan, attorney for the
plantiffs in these cases. Ve discussed the matter guite thorough-
ly some weeks ago. Hr. Mc Kiernan demanded 100,000 for the
settlement of the cases then under consideration. Ve induced

him to reduce his claim to §75,000. His attitude seemed so fair

41 £
CAaT

Ry ils

to all of us ti we felt it the part of wisdom at

Lo

time

to suggest to Mr. Mc Kiernan that he get representation of all
the cases arising out of the Herrin matter. Ve continued the dis-
cussion for a couple of weeks to enable Mr. lMc Kiernan to get

in touch with the others d upon August 30th, he age
with a list of claims. He did not guarantee us thét he
the claime. This, of course, he could not do, nor is it
that eny verson could give such assurance. He kent his
of being willing to settle the claims there-to-fore dis

O

o
an

$75,000. He presented additional claims bringing the tot

up to, I think $137,500. Ve, yourself, and myself, afte
ference decided to say to Mr. lMc Kiernan that we would
the payment of $100,000 in full payment of all the clai
the hands of Mr. Mc Xiernan. He assured us of his beli
he could obtain releases from all for this amount.
advisef vayment of this amount. This advise is based up
discussed between yo
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in meet us

had all
likely
agreenent
cussed for
tal claim
r a con-
recomaend
me in
ef that

I unhesitatingly

on reasons

elf, Mr. Warrum and myself which need not

be here reveated. It is my suggestion that a check be drawn to

0DaTrT

am Ol

Diia

your order for this unt, account Legal De tment,
make the necessary disbursements in exchange for releas
adninistrators and the injured men. I have not yet had
examine thorouchly the form of releases from the admini

Will try to do so in the near future.

2

nd that you
s from the

time to

strators.



Earl E. Houck (cont'd)

The matter of who shall make the payment or in what
proportion it shall be made if that be the plan, being a purely
xecutive question, I sugrest it be committed for solution to
International President Lewis and District President Farrington.
After it 1s eaareed that the vayment be made, I shall be glad
to meet with you in Chicago and have with me one of our Invest-

igators who knows most of these claimants.

5

18

With kind regards, 1 am

Very truly yours,

S
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THE QUESTION OF RE!MBURSEMENT BY DISTRICT NUMBER TWELVE STOP MR
HOUCK INDICATED TO MR KERR. THAT YOU PREFERRED HEARING FROM
ME BEFORE AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT 8TOP & AM SENDING THIS
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ADVISED THE GHICAGO ATTORVEY THAT MR KERR AND I WILL BE THERE
WEDNESDAY AND THURSDAY TO PAY THE LONEY AND SEGURE THE RELEASES IF
THERE IS ANY HEITCH IN THE PROGRAM OR THIS PLAN I WILL ADVISE YOU
I DIATELY

EARL E HOUCK.
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PENNSYLVANIA HOTEL NEWYORK MY

JUST EAD CONFERENCE WITH SECRETARY GREEN OX ILLINOIS MATTER HE
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SUGCESTS THAT CHECK EE DRAWN TO PARRINGTON AND THAT FARRINGTION

ENDORSE THE CHECK TO ME FARRINGION IS IN INDIAFAPOLLS TODAY ATND
GREEN IS ENDEAVORING TO HAVE HIM COME IN AND CARRY OUT THIS PLAN

STOP MR GREENS IDEA IS TO AVOID ANY DISPUTE AEQUT THE DI““RI("T

BEING RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MONEY I FULIEVE THIS WILL VORK OUT ALL

RIGHT I HAVE
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TIME OF RECEIPT SHOWN
ON THIS MESSAGE IS

: RN STANDARD TIME
JOHN L LEWIS

PRESIDENT UNITED MINE WORKERS OF AMA PENNSYLVANIA HOTEL

NEWYORK NY
MR HOUCK ADVIGES MR KERR THIE& MORNING THAT YQU HAVE
NOT RECEIVED MY LETTER TO
8TOP IN THAT LETTER |

YOU OF THE TENTH INSTANT
ADVISED YOU OF THE FEAR

THAT MESERS WARRUM HOUCK AND KERR HAD WITH REFERENCE TO
DELAY IN CLOSING THE CHICAGO MATTER BTO- | ALSO SUGGEETED

THAT YOU HAVE THE INTERNATIONAL PAY THE NECESEBARY AMOUNT OVER
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Casey lotel,
Scranton, Pae,
septenber 17,1923,

Ire Frank Farrington,President,
District Ho. 12, U.l.Vla Of A,
Springfield, Illinoise.

Deay Sir and Brother:

I am advised by wire from lir. Houclk that you, Secretary
Green and he have campleted final arrangenents covering
the details of payment in the matter of the Chiecagd
litigatione I anm indecd pleased that a satisfactory
arranremnent hag been  made and trust that the final
disposition of the case may be rmde in an equally satig-
factoyy vway in Uhicago during the present weclks

I an sorry that your letter of the 10th inst., affecting
this matter, was delayed in reaching me. I think, how-
ever, it was partly due to an error in addressing the
envelope containing the letters I am enclosing the en-
velope in questions It was delivered to my regidence in
Springfield and then forwarded to me here in sScrantone

I did not reach Seranton until late last evening, which
accounts for my lack of knowledge of the comnunicatione.

Very truly yours,

Presidente
HC



Casey liotel,
Seranton,Pa.,
September 17,1923,
ire Earl E. Houck,"
1112 llerchants Bank Building,
Indicnapolis, Indiana.

Wy dear lire. ioucks:

Thanks for your wire of the 15th inst., advising that
Parrington, Green and you have coupleted final arrance-
nents in the nany matters involved in the Chicago liti-
gatione I wish you all success in winding up the affaiy
in Ghicago durlng the pregent veeke

With every good wish, I an

Bincerely yours,

Preasidente
HC
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MERCHANTS BANK BLDG.
Indianapolis, Indiana,

September 24, 1925,

Mr. Jdohn L. Lewis,
1132 V. Lawrence Ave.
Springfield, Ill.

My dear lir. Lewis:

I em pleased to advise you that we have finally
concluded the settlement of the Lerrin cases last weex
in Chicego.

Secretary Green, after a conference with lkir.
Parrington who hanpened to be in Indianapolis, made a
check for $100,000.00 payable to Frank rerrington,
President of District 12. HEr. Farrington then endorsed
the check to me. I took an Indisna Netional Bank drsft
to Chicago and deposited the $100,000.00 in the Chicago
.Trust Comnpany and paid the claims by check. I am enclosing
& list of the claims we mede settlement of and the amount
paid,

Mr. Kerr advised me that a man by the name of Green,
who was & former guard, had brought suit against the
Southern Illinois Coal Compeny for $100,000.00, in one
of the Stete Courts of Illinois. Inasmuch as District 12
now owns the Southern Illinois Coal Company, the District
naturally becomes the defendsnt. Any way, bkir. kerr was of
the opinion that he could compromise that case for £2000.00.
We advised lir. lickiernan, the attorney on the other side,
that this wes a8 new case and asled him to cooperete with
us in reducing his clients' claims in the asmount of
+2,000.00, so that we would heve enough left out of the
+100,000,00 to settle the ureen case. This Lir. ixckiernan
wes able to do. At the request of lir. Lkerr, I drew a
check for the remaining ¢2,000.00 in the fund, to Fred

Cooper end William %ells, Investigators in the Legal Depertment

of District 12, for the purvose of procuring settlement

s



lir. John L. Lewis, v. 2.

in the sbove cese. 1 have obtained releases from all
the parties to whom settlements. were meade.

I personally feel that this is a fine settlement
and so far &s we znow includes all who were injured and
1 am sure concludes the most embarrassing litigation we
have ever hesd belore. us, and my understanding from
Secretery Green that the arrengement with lir. Ferrington
is & loan to the District, therefore we come out of this
without any expense, except my own personal expense.

kir., Lewis, the last two weeks 1 have had additionel
expense outside of my personel hotel bills, incurred in
this case, in the amount of 65,00, I am enclosing a
statement of this &nd if you see fit to approve sane
and reconmmend payment, I will appreciate it.

In settling these cases 1 have had the hearty
cooperation of lr, Kerr and the Legal Department of District
12

Youre truly,

o
Gt &/ﬁﬂ/&é/r/

EEH-LV /



REPORT OF BARL 5. 1 JOGO O SETTLELENT OF CsSRTA
CLLlls IN HueRRIN, ILLINOLS, LITIGALIOYH.

Sept. 10, 1925, Deposited in the Chicago
Trust Compeny, Chicego, Illinois, for settle-
ment of lerrin litigation +100,000.00,
Checks drawn on 3Sept, 20, 1923, on sbove deposit:
smount given lur. liciier-~ Totel amt
to Claimant . nan'sS Jee of Claim

Georgze Hall, Admr., mstate of Geo.

Helldr. and Geo. «. waliun, 2,000.00 1,000.,00 3,000,
Zric lkiller 7,500.00 2, 500,00 0,000.0C
Robert C. licLennon 4,500.00 1,500 .00 6,000.0
Joe Sodter 750,00 250.00 1,000.®
frenk N. Fuller 750,00 260,00 1,000.®
Frenk Schmidt 2,686.00 B75.00 2,500.®
“John Rogers 7850.00 250,00 1,000.
liery Kearney, Conservetrix,

of Thomes ileming, 8,000.00 1,000.00 4,000.®@
liike Kilosh 281.2b6 93,75 375,00
George W. Gosmen, Admr. Dstate

of Horatio Gosman, 3,000.00 1,000.00 4,000,@
Lyrtle Ritcher, Administratrix

Estate of Robert learsh, 2,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00
ey il. Chiappetta, EZxecutrix

Zgtate of Sidney liorrison 6, 750,00 2, 250,00 9,000.00
~-Williem Ceirns 5,625.00 1,875.C0 7,500.®
~Patrick Josech O'Rourxze 2,000,00 Z,000.00 12,000.@
Will J. O'Rourke 750,00 260,00 1,000.®
Robert Tracy 750,00 250.00 1,000.®
Richerd Vesch 375,00 125,00 500,00
Andrew Riber 281.25 98.75 375.00
-Ed Rose 9,000.00 3,000.00 12,000,00
John ZPittman * - 562,50 187.50 75C.00
Harry T. Springer 5,625.00 1,875.00 7,500.M
Odis Lawrence 375.00 125.00 500.@
-Allen P. Findlay 3,750.00 1, 250.00 5,000.00
C. O. Anderson 750 .00 250.00 1,000.00
David C, killer, Admr. Zstate of

Arthur B. liller 2,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.®
rred Cooper end William Valls,

Investigatiors, to be used in

attempt to settle Green case vs.

Southern Illinois Coal Co. 2,000,00 2,000.®
Je Oo Lichiernan, Attorney 24, 280.00

Jeo O, liciliernan, & 1,000.00

100, 000,00 2b,250.00 100,000.®

NOTE. Inasmuch as lir. licKiernan, Attorney for these clients had served
us with attorneys' liens, we were compelled to protect him, under ths

. -dllinois statute, to the emount under his contract with each of his
individual clients , this wes done, snd in eech release we also hed

& releese from lir. licKiernen in full on the sttorneys' liens.



RELEASE. 4-20"2.5

WHEREAS, the undersigned, Georgc Holl as
Adnipistrator of the Estate of George Haoll, Jr. | deceased,
¢loims that his decedent George Hall, Jr. . had been injured
on or about the 22nd day of June, A. D. 1922, by certain persons

or mobs at or near the property of the Southern Illinois Coal

W WY N BT e R AR T

Company in WVilliamson County, Illinois, or between that point

and the City of Herx n, Illinois, by being beaten, aut,choked,
SRR apetasann o T

struck, shot, kicked, dragged, hanged and otherwise assaulted

and abused; and

WHEREAS, the undersigned as such Administrator claims

that the next of kin of said” Rems=iz=wsne™ = gdecessed,

suffered pecuniary loss by reason of the death of said de-
ceased; and

WHEREAS, the undersigned zs& such Administrator claims
that the said injuries above referred to were due to the wil=-
ful acte and misconduct of the United lMine Workers of America,
Pistrict 12 of the United Mine Vorkers of America, all of the
Local Unions of the United Mine Workers of America in Jackson,
Williamson, Franklin and Baline Counties and Southern Illinois
Coz2l Company, as well as the negligence and omission of duty
upon the part of certain officers in end for the County of
Williamson, Illinois; and

WHEREAS, the undersigned as such Administrator further
claims that said United Mine Workers of America, District 2 12
United Mine Workers of America, said Local Unions of said
Countiee of Jackson, Williamson, ¥ranklin and Saline and the
County of Williamson and Southern Illinois Coal Company are
liable to him as such Administrator in damages on account of said

injuries so alleged to have been received by said decedent; and



WHEREAS, said United Mine Workers of America, District
1§ United Mine Workers of America, all of sald Local Unions of
said United Mine Vorkers of America in said Counties of Jackson,
Villiamson, Franklin and Saline and the County of Williamson
and Southern Illinois Coal Company, deny, jointly or severzally,
any and all liability for said alleged injuries or the causes
leading thereto; and /

VHEREAS, the undersigned and said District 12 of the
United Mine Workers of America, the United Mine Workers of
Anerica and Southern Illinois Coal Company have agreed to
settlé and comﬁromise the disputed claims for damages arising
out of said alleged injuries as claimed;

XOW, THEREFORE, by way of compromise and for and in
consideration of the sum of ”;jZ2ZZAgL~:ZZ%iég&ﬁiga,xggggzgggma9{)
Dollars, good and léwful money of the United States of America
this day cash in hand paid to the undersigned as such Adminis-
trator, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does
hereby release said United Mine Workers of America, District
12 United Mine Workers of America, all Local Unions of the
United Mine Workers of America in the Counties of Jackson,
Williamson, Franklin and Saline, in said State of Illinois, the
‘Southern Illinois Coal Company, a corporation, and its
successors and assigns, and the County of Williamson, Illinois,
from any and all claims, actions, causes of action and damages
of every kind and character whatsoever to which the under-
signed is now entitled or may hereafter become entitled, by or
in conscguence of “‘he said allezed injuries shove mentioned,
and whether directly or indirectly, specifically including in
this release and covenant not to sue, all officers, members and
- local unions and other branches of said United Mine Workers of

Anmerica.



It being further expressly understood as a part of the
consideration for said payment that the said undersigned as
gsuch Administrator shzll at once enter in writing his dismissal
of any amd all suits now pending in the United States Court or
the State Courts to recover upon the above mentioned cause of
ection, and said dismissals to be at the cost of the said under-
gigned, the plaintiff or petitioner in said suits, including all
actions now pending before the Industrial Commission of Illinois
for compensation thereunder,

It being further specifically and exprescsly agreed by
‘the undersigned, as such Administrator, in consideration of the
payment to him as above provided, that he does hereby covenant
and égree not to sue either United Mine Workers of America,
District 12 United Mine Workers of America, any Local Union of
the United Mine Workers of America in the Counties of Jackson,
Williamson, Franklin and Saline, Illinois, the Southern Illinois
Coal Company or Williamscn County, or any other person or percons
upon the alleged cause of action above referred to.

It béing further specifically and expressly agreed that
said sum of money hereinabove mentioned to be paid to the under-
signed as such Administrator is the sole and only consideration
whatsoever for this release and covenant not to sue moving to
the said undersigned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and

seal to this document and to one other document of identical

Wbrds, figures, tenor and effect, this the Z%i_ day of
September, A. D, 1923, y
p y Alé;/ - / s (7
/:ﬂlA“1) fﬁﬂci/Q%L . (Seal)
Sipned, sealed and delivered (LA i i
in th ésence of:

LAQQ4527;zﬂL{;éQéLJ
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SPATE OF ILLINOIS.
COUNTY OF COOK. (

Before me Qz%ﬁﬂzz@msm a Notary Public, in
(

and for the County and State aforesaid this day personally

appeared fﬂégaﬁdgza/4él(?7 Administrator of the Estate
of .4224T;h5_,§£J¥{6%&V , Gececsed, personally known

to me to be same person who signed, sealed and delivered the
above and foregoing release and covenant not to sue and acknow=-
ledged that he signed, sealed and delivered. the same as and

for his free and voluntary act and deed and for the uses and

_purposes therein set farth.

Witness my hend and notarial seal, this 52;14¥1day

<:;l«ca4(/7/£? gg%ﬁ¢§/£2hﬂaﬁcbwh

axry Public.

of September, A. D. 1923

The abcve release has been made by and with the consent
and approval of the undersigned, .attorneys of record of the re-
leasor; and we hereby expressly release any and all cleim or
claims accrued to us or either of us as such attorneys and
acaim t either United Mine Workers of Auerica, District 12
United Mine Workers of America, any Local Union of the United
Mine Workers of America in the Counties'of Jackson, Williamson,
¥rankdin and Seline, Illinois, the Southern Illinois Coal
Company or Williamson County by reason of ouxr employment herein
or by reemon of any attorney's lien accruing hereunder to us
or either of us,

Dated at Chicago, Illinois, this ngﬁﬁ: day of

September, A, D, 19235.
/ WM @ }’ém;@:fmﬁ#,i&m




United Mine Workers of America;,
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EARL E. HOUCK & ‘\{\ AFFILIATED WITH
LEGAL DEPARTMENT \ A.F. oF L.

MERCHANTS BANK BLDG.
Indianapolis, Indiana,

November 15, 1923.

Mr. John L. Lewis,
1114 Merchants Bank Bldg.
Indienapolis, Ind.

My deer Mr. Lewis:

While I wes in Fort Smith, Arkanses, in the
Coronedo case, I received & letter which Secretary-
Treasurer Green referred to me, from Joseph D. Irose,
Attorney at Law, Chicego, Ill., advising that he repre-
sented a Mr. Sherman Holman who alleged that he was
severely injured in the Herrin riot in June, 1922;
that he contemplated suit against the International Union
unless some compromise could be reached.

On receipt of this letter I referred the same to
Mr. A. W. Kerr, chief counsel for District 12, as I was
unable to give it my attention a2t that time, and requested
Mr. Xerr to take such action as he deemed advisaple. The
matter was taken up by Mr, Kerr with lr. Irose end it
later developed that there were seven claimants. After
numerous meetings, Mr. Kerr advised me on November 8, 1923,
that he had agreed with the Chicago attorney that he would
recommend settlement of the seven claims for the sum of
$4500.00, and asked that the transaction be handled in the
same menner as in the previous settlement.

Mr. Farrington celled me at my home on Sunday,
November 11, asking that I have Secretary- Treasurer Green
draw & check maede payable to Frank PFarrington as President
of District 12 for $4500.00 and that he, Farrington, would
meet me in Chicago on November 1l4th and endorse the check
to me. This suggestion was carried out by Lir. Green and
myself. I took the check to Chicago, Mr. farrington en-
dorsed it to me and I deposited this amount in the Chicago
Trust Company, and made full settlement of the following

claims:

G0



Mr. Lewis, p. 2.

James Cummings $200.00
Bernard Jones 500.00

Charles Patterson 500.00
Maurice T. Deleney 400.00

John dJordan 1000.00
Anton Heipel 400.00
Sherman Holmen 1500.00

$4500.00

I am advised by Lir.e J. O. McKiernan, who represented
some of these claimants, as well es all of the claimeants
in the previous settlement, that this wipes out a&ll of the
injured men that he knows anything eabout. This cleans
up all the cases that have ever been in the Compensstion
Courts of lllinois.

Mr. Kerr advised me, confidentislly, that he has a
record of severel additional people who were employed
there at that time and who may have been more or less in-
jured but there has been no claim made and there is no
agitation from these people so far as he knows.

I had no part in arriving at the amounts paid these
cleimants and only scted in a clerical capacity in writing
the checks and taking the releases. iy understanding is
that the $4500.00 is a loan to District 12.

Yours very truly,

A o s /
Qéi§;¢1/67 égnggéyacAuﬁﬁﬁf

EEH-LW,
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MERCHANTS BANK BLDG.
Indianapolis, Indiana

November 27, 1923.

Mr. John L. Lewis,
1114 lerchants Bank Bldg.
Indianapolis, Ind.

My dear Mr. Lewis:

This will acknowledge receipt of a letter
from Jones & Key, Attorneys, in re Ernest H. Renaud,
elleged to have been injured in the Herrin trouble.

I have written Jones & Key and advised them
that the matter has been referred to hr. A. W. Kerr,
Chief Counsel for District 12, and have sent copy of
my letter to Mr. Kerr, suggesting that he handle the
metter as he sees fit. 1 have advised Mr. Kerr that
I am leaving tomorrow to be gone for severel weeks and
have tendered my services upon my return.

Yours very truly,

¢l EMfk

EEH-LW,

BET
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Sometime £go % learced that your Union hed settled
& number of clai with the nien that were shot up at iderri
June £2lgt asnd Z8nd 1922, 1 was one of the vietims and was
shot. 1 have & bullet wound end & bed scar over the left eys.
1 wes otherwise wounded so that 1 could not walk for svout two
months, ard have not fully recovéred yet. About the middle
‘of legrch this year I went 10 see an Attorney by the name of
ic{iernan, wiho one of the other boys thet were down at rterrin

told me had handled the settlements for those that were paid.

o 7

B

&l

10

2]

1 do not think this lawyer is doing anything on my
case as he seems to try and discourage me whenever 1 telk
with him sbout it. There is snother lewyer that is anxious
to get my case and the cases of three others with whom no
settlement hes beern made, Ee says he is able to handle the
cases better than lcXiernan end will get us a2 lot of money
as he has the backing of plenty of funds with which to fight.
Unless licXiernan does something in our cases immedistely we'
are going to take the cases out of his hands. 1 do not sece
xkEx wny you do not settle with us when you settled with the
others. I only want 2000,00 and I think the other fellows
would scttle cheap if they could get their money without
& law suiv. Let me near from you whether you will settle
without & trisl. ‘

Yours truly,

o M Manhiics

5430 u/m%
: ﬂ/tf

:/\
L
L4
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MERCHANTS BANK BLDG.
Indianapolis, Indiana .

April 14, 1924.

Mr. John L. Lewis,
Merchants Bankx Bldg.
Indienapolis, Ind.

My dear Mr., Lewis:

Miss Cromer, of your office, has hended me & copy of
letter to you written by EKarl k. liankins regarding per-
gonal injuries alleged to have been received in the
Herrin trouble. Mr. Kerr and I were advised of this
man along with three others when we were in Chicago.

Vle are looking after it and suppose some sort of &
settlement will have to made, but we have in mind to
hold these settlements up until as near June 22nd as
we can. The statute of limitation goes into effect
two years after the alleged injury.

We will no doubt have to make settlement with these
people before that time, but after that date 211 other
cases will be outlawed.

An injunction suit has been filed against us in Knox-
ville, Tenn. by the Tennessee- Jellico Company and
the hearing is set for next Saturday the 19th at
Knoxville. I am planning to leave about Wednesday

and lir. YWarrum will arrive there Friday.

Yours truly,

P,S. I am returning clipping you handed me in
Washington and which 1 forgot to return.

EEear



‘ United Mine Workers of America
EARL E. HOUCK \\s\ AFFILIATED WITH
LEGAL DEPARTMENT / W A.F.oF L.
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MERCHANTS BANK BLDG.
Indianapelis, Indiana

dJune 7, 1924.

- Mr, John L. Lewis,
1114 lerchants Bank Bldg.
Indianapolis, Ind.

Mr. Frenk Farrington,
Mine Workers' Bldg.
Springfield, Il1.

Gentlemen:

We beg to advise that the undersigned, your representatives,
met on June 6th with Mr. J. 0. McKiernan, attorney, for
certain claims as & result of the Herrin riot. As you
will recall, settlement has previously been made with

about forty cleimants. Mr. McKiernen represents five
additional claiments who have not as yet been settled with.

We have known of these people for some time but have delzyed
negotiations with them as long as possible, knowing that

the stetute of limitation expires on June 22nd of this yesar.
In other words, they cannot file suit agalnst the organizetion
after this date. We are advised by counsel that unless
settlement is made not later then the 17th of this month

that they will file suit in Federal Court in Indienapolis.

We have every reason to believe that they are prepared to

do so.

We wish to make it plain that we both feel that Mr. McKiernan
has been very helpful to us in these settlements and has
been very feir to the organizetion.

The following are the names and a brief memoreandum of the
injuries alleged to have been sustained by each of then

o

and the smounts asgked in seattlement:-

A Fwa



Mr. John L. Lewis,
Mr. Frenk Farrington, - p. 2.

JOHN MILLER: 28 years of age. Lives at 63rd and Pine
Sts., New York, or rather claims that as his home.
Married. One child 4 years of age. Was sent to Herrin
the 16th or 17th of June by Bertrand as a waiter. Was
in the line of March. Shot in right ankle. Had medical
attention in St. Louis. Dr. C. R. Smith, next to post
office. Rifle ball in back of neck. HFractured right
collar bone in falling on a stump. Got to St. Louis
ebout three days after. Doctor bill $60.00. In hospitsl
ebout three weeks, unable to work for sbout four months.
Thinks he shculd have $2,000.00.

THOMAS J. MCDONALD: 41 years old. Single. News butcher.
Went down 20th of June. Sent by Bertrand as laborer.
Was on the truck leaving Carbondele when it was fired
upon. Vas not shot. EHad to swim the creek and lost

baggage. VWants $150.00.

EDWARD L. COLLINS: About 35, NMarried. DNo children. Three
or four ribs broken. Was in line of march. Struck with
butt of gun. Laid up three or four weeks. Still bothered.
Has placed no figure on his cleim.

EARL MANKIN: 2% years of asge. ldarried since trouble. One
child. Chauffeur by occupation. ¥as in the Dodge car on
way to mine from Cerbondale June 2lst. Sent down by Har-
grave. Bullet wound leaving scar over left eye. Could
not walk for about two months on account of bullets that
came thru the side of the cer strikirng the legs. Thinks

he should have $2,000.00.

Ce E. BOYD: Operated electric drill. Was on the
company truck and was fired on several times. Sustained
severe injury on jaw and chin. Has large lump on chin,
has several scars from club and butt of revolver on
forhead and back of head. Wag in the hospital at
Carbondale several days. Asks for $1,000.00.




Mr. John L. Lewis,
Mrs Frenk Ferrington, - p. 3.

After a conference with Mr. McKiernan, we believe that

we will be able to make settlement of the above cases for
the sum of $4,000.00 or less. Without going into further
detail of the negotiations, we recommend to you compromise
of these claims on the basis outlined above.

Respectfully submitted,
- Q)
W T S

s
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JUDGE A. W. KERR

OFFICE OF
CHIEF COUNSEL

e LEGAL DEPARTMENT TIK TLL, SAITEE: IRRRE R WDe
CHIEF COUNSEL SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS
ILLINOIS MINE WORKERS BLDG.
. JOSEPH A. LONDRIGAN
SPRINGFIELD, ILL. DISTRICT NO. 2, 2TH FLOOR

« ILL. MINE WORKERS BLOG
TELEPHONE NO.

-~
__FICE M. 992 RES M. I£11 i[lltil‘h THOMAS A. MURPHY
- 7TH FLOOR

fLL. MINE WORKERS BLDG
SPRINGFIELD, tLL

Mine Woarkers of Aneric ol o

323 MURFPHY BLDG
EAST ST. Louis, ItLL

D s o i _
(,(y,,y,,,//,,%/,, Winocizune 9,1984. James s Lews.
¢ GEORGE R. STONE
MARION, ILLINOIS

LY ¢ A. C. LEWIS

BENTON, ILL.

SPRINGFIELD. ILLINOIS

SENERAL ATTORNEYS

Mr. John L. Lewis, Pres.,
United Mine Workers of America,
Springfield, Illinois.
Dear Sir:-

Inclosed joint letter of Mr. Houck and
myself relative to what we hope are the last of
the Herrin personal injury cases. Mr. Houck

advised that I mail it to you here in Springfield.

\

AWK VD Yours very truly,

S 2o

m——— T



1114 Merchants Banl Bldgs,
dJune 11, 1024,

Mre A Wo Korr,

Chief Counsel,Districht #12, UMW of Aoy
Springfield, Illinoisg.

Dear Sir:

I have your favor of June 9th tranemitting joint
letter of yourself snd Mr. Houck with further relation to
the Herrin personal injury cases,s I thank you for your
courtesy in the premises and will discuss the matter with
- Hr. Houck who wiil sdvise you of my views thereons

Very truly yours,

Pregidente.

ce



Sucis®

T ~ vl 99 Wi
& 1hﬂtqﬂﬂﬂdr‘ufx. gul 239 182

1 o
I t ‘ ‘STRlCT 10 OF D’S‘r;:, I ‘[

€
— - AFFILIATED
WITH g
A.F.OF L.
WM, J. SNEED, ; g* TELEPHONE,
PRESIDENT o v ¥ ¥ W OFFICE 7-R. RES. 103-1

OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT
115 FORD BUILDING, NORTH P AVENUE

HERRIN, ILLINOIS

=

Uetaober L3, 132,

kr. Jdohn L. Lewis, rresident |
Union iine Jorkxers of America, f
114 serchants Bank Bldg.,

indianapolis, Ind

5

Dezr sir and brother:

s wWith inclosure, for

=4
P
g
<:
@

vour letter of vetober 1

& 2

wWnieh wccept my thanks. [ shall go into this maltler
in detail snd will azdvise you with reference to it in f
the next Ifew days. lay t g 11 eonnesction :
with the prosecution of riot here, has E

- the promise 0i every att ne Nulional sield

workers assizned, have be sgsisting the &
protection of every inter 5 matter. P
i
IL ey b wk 1 the epurt convenes for oT j
s 11 ask you that alls i

snd zgsist.

iy judgment 1t et jou Suﬂd$d
thet 1L w1;1 11 gny way greate

r in the procesdure now established,

S5 TE: g county, will hive the devct of

mgkinb the members of our orgu tion, &as well «s those
Jdlut d, feel & N 3

source and in every elenent

ing protected from every
the iiiners urganizétlon.

I eppreciate very fullYthat you are a very busy man, but if
rou can come here for 'seven & few hours, I think that you
will agree, it will be worth while.

with reference to our discussion with rererenoe to aproint-~
ments by the sovernor, may I say Pt I have sincee iunlizad t0

nim ond he is very desirous oi seeing wnd tdl\lhﬁ with you
relative to the matters discussed by Zimmerman, yvourselt and I.



©

I would suzirest that wiile in S.rinsfield, you arranze
gonference with poand in all probsbility, vou will be
succass

gommissione.

.

Loping 1o hear from you wnen it is convenient, I am,

b
(49
L

sovectfulliy yours,

e

/7 g

& (

/

frdod
sgful in haviag John aimmerman placed on the Industricl

o



CLASS OF SERVICE DESIRED ﬁ, A py "? ﬁa mm?m
Jrlegram ; &Xf' j’ Lig @ E’ kinsr,
Cay Letter '
Night Message |
Night Lotter l m 133
.& b Lo

Patrons should mark an X oppo-
o the class of service desired;
/HERWISE THE MESSAGE

\ra’ILL B TRANSMITYED AS A

FULL-RATE TELEGRAM 'NEWCOMB CARLTON, PRESIDENT

GEORGE W, E. ATKINS, FIRST VICE-PRESIDE

Aot

T Daiyss

Recelver's No.

Check

Time Fifed

NT

Send th?falléwing message, subject to the terms
on back hereof, which are hereby agreed to

Inijenupolic,Indiane,
Octe 23,1922,
Juan se Low "Ji,
1152 Q8L LI Trenes Lavon G,

prir Xiola,lliinois.

«neod writes suwpestinz wnils in &

zovarnor vho disires to £08 you refereonde Ly
304 14 ~immirmone  Thinie OJ. coala
nlaced on Industrial Co: uL.lwion.

in Coringfield you crrin.
ypointmenis

w0 succosstul in hoving oime

B contor

HEeCarre.

.7“ "1
Wi A

0 0 Unltod «ine Vorltorse

i 854 50
e

ot 1th

need discussed with
WLiCITEn

you tne affzirs envolved., iy judgment is, tinal jou should

"0 this snd 1 Go wot think that it will in any way ereate
friction or muddy the water in the proceedure now established,
but your appesarance in this Junuy, will huve the effect of
making the members of our orgunization, as well ws those
indicted, feel ti-wt they ars being protected from every

source and in every element in the iiinzrs Urganizution.

I appreciste very fullYthat you are & very busy man, s it
0w can come here for 'even e few hours, I think that you

will agree, it will be worth while.

With reference to our discussion with reference to aproint-
ments by the covernor, may I say thoet I have since talged to
nim ond he is very desirous of seeing =nd talzing with you
relutive to the matters disensse by Zimmerman, rourcciy and I.




. Springfisld,I1linois, } V
Nowmber 29,1922,

I'.{I‘. Jo't’-' Jindror E\h'
Riverton, Illinois.

Dear Sir aml Brother:

In your campzign for the office of President of District No. 12, United
Mine Workers of Arerica, I notico in the colums of the Illinois XMiner, as well
as in other publications, that you are hoving quite a cmtroversy with President
Frank Ferrington in rogerd to whether or not he maode statemonts during the recent
strike in favor of the miners -0of the Centrsl Competitive Field accepting & reduc-
tion in wages.

It I understand President Farringtom's statements correctly, he is conisnd-
ing t0 you and to tho mombers of our orgunization in District Noe. 12 that he is
not guotsd correctly and that he did not make statemsnts such as zbove referred 0.
It may bo interesting to you to kmow that I have been reliably informsd by men
whose veracity canmot be questioned that President Farrinsion did moke the state-
ment that the Central Compeli tive Field would be obliged to tale a reduction and
. that that was the only thing for them to do. In order that this statemsnt may be
verified, if you will write to Mr. Lee liall, President of District o, 6, 75
Rugzery Bldg., Coluwbus, Ohio, I am sire that he will tell you that Parrington
did on or about July 10th in the city of Washington, D.C., m2ke tho statement to
him that "the miners vould bo compelled to take & reduction in wages and hed better
guit fooling thomse lves any longor."

I am dlso roliably infomed by International Board llerber Sam Caddy of
District Ilo. 10, stute of Washington, that llr. Robert Harlin and Mr. Hrnest Newsham,
forerly Presidsnt and Seceretary of Distriet No. 10, made the statemant to him
end to others in District No, 10 that Farrington said "there is bound tobe & national
reduction; there is no gquzstion adoub it; that that was the ifveling of the Central
Conpotitive Fisld ani for them to go back to District Ho. 10 and sizn up & scale
for ;6,00 & day,and 6o hell with John L. Lewis."

Trose are statemonts that can be verified by responsible peomle, Each of
the brothers mentioned in this letter can verify them. 1 am sendics you this in-
formatlon withiout any solidid¢ation on your part and have in mind only a desire to
have tho memborsuip of District Wo. 12 correctly infomed as to the adtitude of
tholr district president during the recent great strugzle to maintzin wages and
conditions of employment, particularly in the Central Comp titive ficld.

Trusting this infomation will be of some service to you, I bes to rarain

Fraternally yours,
I 7

P %] 3
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HARRISBURG, ILLINOIS Deo o5th, 1922.

wr John L. Lewis,

Indianapolis, Ill.

Year Sir and Lrother;

1 have good reasons to beleive that you

are interested in the selection or & aistrict Bresiaent in
Yistrict 12,1 am opposea to the present oriicers anda have o

been 1Ior & gooa many years in fact 1 have never been Ior
Fgrrington in my life ana nhe knows it, ana the machines inrluence
has been used against me on numerous accasions,we have & good
chance to get rid or farrington in the coming election anda 1
beleive that you can assist the men in [llinois to pull the thing
through, we have about 800 colored men in thnis Lub bistrict anad

1l peleive that if we haa a good man to put in a few aays amongst
them that thney would go against the mechine, I wish you could

see your way clear to send Vrganizer Prentice into Saline County
to work amongst the colored men 1 am sure that all of the members
who are interested in the welfare of the organizstion will apprec-
-‘late it very much, the actions of rarrington in the recent strike
proves to everyone that he is not for the miners whom he is
supposed to represent, he started in before the last election

to discredit you ror the XBX purpose ol running you out or the
Mine Viorkers Organization but 1 beleive that he will be the one
to get run out, if it is at all possible send Prentice over:

here and ir it is not asking too much & little assistance with
the other voters would be acceptable as well, I have no fear of
myg own election but wmmx woula like to see the machine smashed
or course [ may get roolea the machine are working against me
hard I woulant rlose very much if I was to get beat but L think

I will get over alright.

Trusting that you will be able to comply with my request,
I am

fraternally yours,

"Sec. Treas.
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Decembey 11, 1592
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Hr. John T }kiom’iﬂ, éecsyo°:f'fea9¢’
Lol P

SubeDiastrict 12, Distriet 12
United iiine Vorkers of /merica,
Harpdigbhurg, Illinoilg.

Deex Six and Brother:

I appreclate your letter of the bth sand will give
the matter every conasideration. I am glad to know you
have reasonable ghuunds for Delleving you will be re-
elected.

With the complimenta of the season, I am

s

Very truly yours,

Prealdente

Joe



	2628-0011-018-00001
	2628-0011-018-00002
	2628-0011-018-00003
	2628-0011-018-00004
	2628-0011-018-00005
	2628-0011-018-00006
	2628-0011-018-00007
	2628-0011-018-00008
	2628-0011-018-00009
	2628-0011-018-00010
	2628-0011-018-00011
	2628-0011-018-00012
	2628-0011-018-00013
	2628-0011-018-00014
	2628-0011-018-00015
	2628-0011-018-00016
	2628-0011-018-00017
	2628-0011-018-00018
	2628-0011-018-00019
	2628-0011-018-00020
	2628-0011-018-00021
	2628-0011-018-00022
	2628-0011-018-00023
	2628-0011-018-00024
	2628-0011-018-00025
	2628-0011-018-00026
	2628-0011-018-00027
	2628-0011-018-00028
	2628-0011-018-00029
	2628-0011-018-00030
	2628-0011-018-00031
	2628-0011-018-00032
	2628-0011-018-00033
	2628-0011-018-00034
	2628-0011-018-00035
	2628-0011-018-00036
	2628-0011-018-00037
	2628-0011-018-00038
	2628-0011-018-00039
	2628-0011-018-00040
	2628-0011-018-00041
	2628-0011-018-00042
	2628-0011-018-00043
	2628-0011-018-00044
	2628-0011-018-00045
	2628-0011-018-00046
	2628-0011-018-00047
	2628-0011-018-00048
	2628-0011-018-00049
	2628-0011-018-00050
	2628-0011-018-00051
	2628-0011-018-00052
	2628-0011-018-00053
	2628-0011-018-00054
	2628-0011-018-00055
	2628-0011-018-00056
	2628-0011-018-00057
	2628-0011-018-00058
	2628-0011-018-00059
	2628-0011-018-00060
	2628-0011-018-00061
	2628-0011-018-00062
	2628-0011-018-00063
	2628-0011-018-00064
	2628-0011-018-00065
	2628-0011-018-00066
	2628-0011-018-00067
	2628-0011-018-00068
	2628-0011-018-00069
	2628-0011-018-00070
	2628-0011-018-00071
	2628-0011-018-00072
	2628-0011-018-00073
	2628-0011-018-00074
	2628-0011-018-00075
	2628-0011-018-00076
	2628-0011-018-00077
	2628-0011-018-00078
	2628-0011-018-00079
	2628-0011-018-00080
	2628-0011-018-00081
	2628-0011-018-00082
	2628-0011-018-00083
	2628-0011-018-00084
	2628-0011-018-00085
	2628-0011-018-00086
	2628-0011-018-00087
	2628-0011-018-00088
	2628-0011-018-00089
	2628-0011-018-00090
	2628-0011-018-00091
	2628-0011-018-00092
	2628-0011-018-00093
	2628-0011-018-00094
	2628-0011-018-00095
	2628-0011-018-00096
	2628-0011-018-00097
	2628-0011-018-00098
	2628-0011-018-00099
	2628-0011-018-00100
	2628-0011-018-00101
	2628-0011-018-00102
	2628-0011-018-00103
	2628-0011-018-00104
	2628-0011-018-00105
	2628-0011-018-00106



